



# THE SOUTH AUSTRALIAN GOVERNMENT GAZETTE

# **PUBLISHED BY AUTHORITY**

# Adelaide, Thursday, 14 July 2022

# CONTENTS

GOVERNOR'S INSTRUMENTS	
Acts—Nos 4-9	. 2220
Appointments	
11	
STATE GOVERNMENT INSTRUMENTS	
Environment Protection Act 1993	. 2222
Fisheries Management Act 2007	. 2222
Land Acquisition Act 1969	
Mental Health Act 2009	. 2224
Motor Vehicles Act 1959	
Passenger Transport Regulations 2009	. 2241
Petroleum and Geothermal Energy Act 2000	
Public Finance and Audit Act 1987	
Retail and Commercial Leases Act 1995	. 2247
Roads (Opening and Closing) Act 1991	
LOCAL GOVERNMENT INSTRUMENTS	
	2240
City of Adelaide	
Campbelltown City Council	. 2249
City of Marion	. 2249
City of Mount Gambier	. 2250

City of Onkaparinga	2250
City of Playford	
City of Port Adelaide Enfield	2251
City of Salisbury	
City of Tea Tree Gully	
City of Unley	2273
Town of Gawler	2273
Adelaide Hills Council	
Copper Coast Council	
Light Regional Council	
Northern Areas Council	
Renmark Paringa Council	2280
District Council of Robe	
Tatiara District Council	
PUBLIC NOTICES	
Trustee Act 1936	2282
University of Adelaide Act 1971	2282

# All instruments appearing in this gazette are to be considered official, and obeyed as such

Printed and published weekly by authority of C. MCARDLE, Government Printer, South Australia \$8.15 per issue (plus postage), \$411.00 per annual subscription—GST inclusive Online publications: www.governmentgazette.sa.gov.au

# **GOVERNOR'S INSTRUMENTS**

ACTS

Department of the Premier and Cabinet Adelaide, 14 July 2022

Her Excellency the Governor directs it to be notified for general information that she has in the name and on behalf of Her Majesty The Queen, this day assented to the undermentioned Acts passed by the Legislative Council and House of Assembly in Parliament assembled, viz.:

No. 4 of 2022—Return to Work (Scheme Sustainability) Amendment Act 2022 An Act to amend the Return to Work Act 2014

No. 5 of 2022—South Australian Motor Sport (Miscellaneous) Amendment Act 2022 An Act to amend the South Australian Motor Sport Act 1984

No. 6 of 2022—Civil Liability (BYO Containers) Amendment Act 2022 An Act to amend the Civil Liability Act 1936

No. 7 of 2022—Animal Welfare (Jumps Racing) Amendment Act 2022 An Act to amend the Animal Welfare Act 1985

No. 8 of 2022—Cross Border Commissioner Act 2022 An Act to establish a Cross Border Commissioner charged with facilitating improved outcomes for people and businesses in cross border communities, and for other purposes

No. 9 of 2022—Statutes Amendment (Child Sex Offences) Act 2022

An Act to amend the Child Sex Offenders Registration Act 2006, the Criminal Law Consolidation Act 1935 and the Sentencing Act 2017

By command,

ZOE LEE BETTISON, MP For Premier

# APPOINTMENTS

Department of the Premier and Cabinet

Adelaide, 14 July 2022

Her Excellency the Governor in Executive Council has been pleased to appoint the undermentioned to the Adelaide Festival Corporation Board, pursuant to the provisions of the Adelaide Festival Corporation Act 1998:

Member: from 14 July 2022 until 12 March 2025

Sandra Maaike Jayne Verschoor

By command,

ZOE LEE BETTISON, MP For Premier

Department of the Premier and Cabinet Adelaide, 14 July 2022

Her Excellency the Governor in Executive Council has been pleased to appoint the undermentioned to the Urban Renewal Authority Board of Management, pursuant to the provisions of the Urban Renewal Act 1995:

Member: from 31 July 2022 until 30 July 2023 Kimberley Willits Anne Kathryn Skipper Member: from 31 July 2022 until 30 July 2024 Stephen Charles Hains Damien Guy Walker Austin Robert Meerten Taylor

Member: from 31 July 2022 until 30 July 2025 Anne Veronica Moroney David Andrew O'Loughlin

Presiding Member: from 31 July 2022 until 30 July 2024 Stephen Charles Hains

By command,

ZOE LEE BETTISON, MP For Premier

22MUDCS00232

ART0004-22CS

Department of the Premier and Cabinet Adelaide, 14 July 2022

# Her Excellency the Governor in Executive Council has been pleased to appoint the Honourable Katrine Anne Hildyard, MP, Minister for Child Protection, Minister for Women and the Prevention of Domestic and Family Violence, and Minister for Recreation, Sport and Racing as Acting Minister for Primary Industries and Regional Development and Acting Minister for Forest Industries for the period from 18 July 2022 to 24 July 2022 inclusive, during the absence of the Honourable Clare Michele Scriven, MLC.

By command,

ZOE LEE BETTISON, MP For Premier

F22/000113CS

Department of the Premier and Cabinet Adelaide, 14 July 2022

Her Excellency the Governor in Executive Council has been pleased to appoint the Honourable Kyam Joseph Maher, MLC, Minister for Aboriginal Affairs, Attorney-General, Ministerial for Industrial Relations and Public Sector as Acting Treasurer for the period from 16 July 2022 to 20 July 2022 inclusive and 23 July 2022 to 31 July 2022 inclusive, during the absence of the Honourable Stephen Campbell Mullighan, MP.

By command,

ZOE LEE BETTISON, MP For Premier

ZOE LEE BETTISON, MP

For Premier

T&F22/022CS

Department of the Premier and Cabinet Adelaide, 14 July 2022

Her Excellency the Governor in Executive Council has been pleased to appoint the Honourable Blair Ingram Boyer, MP, Minister for Education, Training and Skills as Acting Minister for Tourism and Acting Minister for Multicultural Affairs for the period from 18 July 2022 to 21 July 2022 inclusive, during the absence of the Honourable Zoe Lee Bettison MP.

By command,

22TMA0193

Department of the Premier and Cabinet Adelaide, 14 July 2022

Her Excellency the Governor directs it to be notified that she has approved the retention of the title 'Honourable' by:

Mr John Darley Mr John Dawkins Dated: 13 July 2022

PETER MALINAUSKAS Premier

# **STATE GOVERNMENT INSTRUMENTS**

#### **ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION ACT 1993**

SECTION 69

## Variation to Existing Approval of Collection Depot

I, Nicholas Stewart, Delegate of the Environment Protection Authority ('the Authority'), pursuant to section 69 of the *Environment Protection Act 1993* (SA) ('the Act') hereby:

# 1. Vary an Existing Approval of Collection Depot

Vary the approval of the collection depot listed at Schedule 1 of this notice, that was granted under the Act prior to the date of this Notice and impose the conditions of this approval to be as follows:

1.1 Approval of Collection Depot:

The collection depot identified by reference to the following matters is approved:

(a) the name of the collection depot described in column 1 of Schedule 1 of this Notice;

(b) the name of the company identified in column 2 of Schedule 1 of this notice;

(c) the name of the proprietor of the depot identified in column 3 of Schedule 1 of this Notice;

(d) the location of the depot described in columns 4-7 of Schedule 1 of this Notice.

The collection depot listed at Schedule 1 of this Notice is approved in relation to all classes of containers, which were approved under the Act, at or subsequent to the date of this Notice, as Category B Containers.

1.2 Conditions of approval:

Impose the following conditions on the approval:

- 1. If the Approval Holder's name or postal address (or both) changes, then the Approval Holder must inform the Authority in writing, within 28 days of the change occurring.
- 2. If the collection depot is sold to another party, the Approval Holder must inform the Authority in writing, within 28 days of settlement.
- 3. The Approval Holder who wishes to cease operation of the depot shall notify the Authority in writing no less than 14 days from the date of closing.
- 4. The Approval Holder, or a person acting on his or her behalf, must not pay a refund on, or seek reimbursement for, containers that the Approval Holder, or the person acting on his or her behalf, knows were not purchased in South Australia.
- 5. The Approval Holder must ensure that prominent signage is displayed, detailing the offence and the penalties under Section 69 the Act, for presenting interstate containers for refund.

Dated: 14 July 2022

NICHOLAS STEWART Team Leader, Container Deposit Scheme and Product Stewardship Delegate of the Environment Protection Authority

		S	SCHEDULE			
Depot Name	Company Name	Proprietors	Depot Location Street	Depot Location Suburb	Cert of Title Volume	Collection Area
Snowtown Recycling	Regional Recycling Systems Pty Ltd	Andrea Snodgrass	2 High Street East	SNOWTOWN	CT-5681-743	Regional
Quorn Recyclers	Hancock Trading Trust	Haydn Hancock; Hollie Hancock	Lot 40, Arden Vale Road	QUORN	5267/33,145	Regional

#### FISHERIES MANAGEMENT ACT 2007

SECTION 44

#### Management Plan for the South Australian Charter Boat Fishery (2022)

TAKE notice that pursuant to Section 44(7) and (10) of the *Fisheries Management Act 2007* I hereby declare that I have adopted the *Management Plan for the South Australian Charter Boat Fishery (2022)* and fix 1 August 2022 as the date on which the plan will take effect:

Dated: 6 July 2022

HON CLARE SCRIVEN MLC Minister for Primary Industries and Regional Development Minister for Forest Industries

## FISHERIES MANAGEMENT ACT 2007

SECTION 115

#### Ministerial Exemption number: ME9903207

TAKE NOTICE that pursuant to section 115 of the Fisheries Management Act 2007, I Professor Gavin Begg, Executive Director Fisheries and Aquaculture, delegate of the Minister for Primary Industries and Regional Development, hereby exempt Dr Nick Whiterod of Aquasave - Nature Glenelg Trust (ABN 23 917 949 584), 16 Anglesea Road, Victor Harbor, South Australia, 5211 (the "exemption holder"), or a person acting as his nominated agent, from sections 70 and 71(2) of the *Fisheries Management Act 2007*; and regulation 5 and clauses 22, 38, 39(a), 40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 72, 73A, 73B, 74 and 96 of Schedule 6 of the Fisheries Management (General) Regulations 2017, but only insofar as the exemption holder may engage in catch and release research activities to survey fish, freshwater and Glenelg crayfish and surf clams from waters specified in Schedule 1, using the gear specified in Schedule 2 (the 'exempted activity'), subject to the conditions specified in Schedule 3 from 26 October 2022 until 25 October 2023 unless otherwise varied or revoked earlier.

SCHEDULE 1

Inland, estuarine and coastal waters of the State excluding Aquatic Reserves, Marine Park sanctuary zones and restricted access zones (unless authorised under the Marine Parks Act 2007).

# SCHEDULE 2

- 5 x Seine nets (maximum length of 25m, minimum mesh size of 2mm)
- 24 x Fyke nets (maximum wing span of 7m, minimum mesh size of 2mm) 40 x Munyana nets (minimum 10cm entrance, minimum mesh size of 12mm)
- 20 x Hoop nets (minimum 10cm entrance, minimum mesh size of 12mm)
- 20 x Pyramid traps (minimum mesh size of 50mm)
- 1 x Backpack electrofisher (Smith-Root LR24) 1 x Boat electrofisher (Smith-Root 5.0 kW GPP)
- 5 x Cockle Rake (800x300mm, minimum mesh size of 12mm)

#### SCHEDULE 3

- 1. The exemption holder will be deemed responsible for the conduct of all persons conducting the activities under this notice. Any person conducting activities as an agent under this exemption must be provided with a copy of this notice, which they must sign as an indication that they have read and understand the conditions of the exemption.
- 2. Fish sampled pursuant to this notice must be returned to the water in the location from which they were taken as soon as reasonably practicable on completion of scientific evaluation.
- 3. All noxious fish collected must be destroyed and disposed of appropriately.
- 4. Specimens retained from surveys for scientific and research purposes must not be sold.
- 5. The following persons are nominated agents of the exemption holder:
  - Dr Sylvia Zukowski
- · Dr Lauren Brown • Dr Lachlan Farrington
- Dr Ruan Gannon
- Cory Young

• Dr Mike Hammer

• Peter Unmack

- · Scott Huntley · Bryan Haywood · Simeon Pocha
- 6. The exemption holder must operate in accordance with the Australian Code of Electrofishing Practice 1997, to the extent that it relates to the exempted activity.
- 7. Before conducting the exempted activity, the exemption holder or nominated agent must contact the Department of Primary Industries and Regions (PIRSA) FISHWATCH on 1800 065 522 and answer a series of questions about the exempted activity and be able to provide information about the area and time of the exempted activity, the vehicles and/or boats involved, the number of agents undertaking the exempted activity and other related issues.
- 8. The exemption holder must provide a report in writing detailing the outcomes of the research and the collection of organisms pursuant to this notice to the Executive Director PIRSA Fisheries and Aquaculture, (GPO Box 1625, ADELAIDE SA 5001) within 2 weeks of completion of the last activity to occur under this notice or within 2 weeks of the expiry of this notice, whichever occurs first, giving the following details:
  - the date and location of sampling;
  - the number of and types of nets used;
  - the description of all species collected (fish, invertebrates, turtles) for purposes of identification;
  - the number of any species collected.
- 9. While engaging in the exempted activity, the exemption holder or a person acting as their agent must be in possession of a copy of this notice. Such notice must be produced to a Fisheries Officer if requested.
- 10. The exemption holder must not contravene or fail to comply with the Fisheries Management Act 2007 or any regulations made under that Act, except where specifically exempted by this notice or any other notice issued under that Act.

This notice does not purport to override the provisions or operation of any other Act including, but not limited to, the Marine Parks Act 2007 and River Murray Act 2003. The exemption holder and his agents must comply with any relevant regulations, permits, requirements and directions.

Dated: 5 July 2022

PROF. GAVIN BEGG Executive Director Fisheries and Aquaculture Delegate of the Minister for Primary Industries and Regional Development

- Jonathan Tuck
- Scotte Wedderburn
- Maiko Lutz
- Tavlar Pav

# FISHERIES MANAGEMENT ACT 2007

#### SECTION 115

# Variation to Ministerial Exemption number: ME9903197 South Australian Museum – collecting organisms for research

TAKE NOTE that the Ministerial exemption notice number ME9903197 in the name of Professor Stephen Donnellan of the South Australia Museum, made under section 115 of the Fisheries Management Act 2007, dated 11 March 2022, and published in the South Australian Gazette dated 17 March 2022, on page 873, being the first notice on that page, relating to the taking of voucher specimens for research is hereby varied such that the following persons are added to the list of nominated agents in Schedule 3 paragraph 7

- Mr David Muirhead
- Mr Dan Monceaux Mr Steve Doyle

Dated: 5 July 2022

PROF. GAVIN BEGG Executive Director Fisheries and Aquaculture Delegate of the Minister for Primary Industries and Regional Development

## LAND ACQUISITION ACT 1969

SECTION 16

#### Form 5 – Notice of Acquisition

#### 1. Notice of acquisition

The Minister for Infrastructure and Transport (the Authority), of 10 Franklin Street, Adelaide SA 5000, acquires the following interests in the following land:

- Comprising an unencumbered estate in fee simple in that piece of land being portion of Allotment 79 in Filed Plan No 154080 comprised in Certificate of Title Volume 5548 Folio 365, and being a portion of the land identified as Allotment First: 150 in D129847 lodged in the Lands Titles Office
- Comprising an unencumbered estate in fee simple in that piece of land being portion of Allotment 81 in Filed Plan No Secondly: 154082 comprised in Certificate of Title Volume 5548 Folio 366, and being a portion of the land identified as Allotment 150 in D129847 lodged in the Lands Titles Office

This notice is given under section 16 of the Land Acquisition Act 1969.

## 2. Compensation

A person who has or had an interest consisting of native title or an alienable interest in the land that is divested or diminished by the acquisition or the enjoyment of which is adversely affected by the acquisition who does not receive an offer of compensation from the Authority may apply to the Authority for compensation.

#### 2A. Payment of professional costs relating to acquisition (section 26B)

If you are the owner in fee simple of the land to which this notice relates, you may be entitled to a payment of up to \$10 000 from the Authority for use towards the payment of professional costs in relation to the acquisition of the land.

Professional costs include legal costs, valuation costs and any other costs prescribed by the Land Acquisition Regulations 2019.

# 3. Inquiries

Inquiries should be directed to: Daniel Tuk

GPO Box 1533 Adelaide SA 5001 Telephone: (08) 7109 7133

Dated: 8 July 2022

SIGNED for and on behalf of the MINISTER FOR INFRASTRUCTURE AND TRANSPORT by his duly constituted Attorney Pursuant to Power of Attorney No. 13405184, who has not received a notice of the revocation of that Power of Attorney in the presence of:

> ROCCO CARUSO Manager, Property Acquisition (Authorised Officer) Department for Infrastructure and Transport

DIT 2021/10941/01

# MENTAL HEALTH ACT 2009

Authorised Mental Health Professional

NOTICE is hereby given in accordance with Section 94(1) of the Mental Health Act 2009, that the Chief Psychiatrist has determined the following person as an Authorised Mental Health Professional

Victoria Johns Anthony Shepherd Natalie Ellul Ann Anderson Damon Fenech Eva Gill-Minero Leslie Miller Vadim Kuznetsov Ella Symonds Jenny Fraser Abigail English

A person's determination as an Authorised Mental Health Professional expires three years after the commencement date. Dated: 8 July 2022

DR J. BRAYLEY Chief Psychiatrist

MOTOR VEHICLES ACT 1959

South Australia

# Motor Vehicles (Approval of Motor Bikes and Motor Trikes) Notice 2022 No 2

under the Motor Vehicles Act 1959

# **1—Short title**

This notice may be cited as the *Motor Vehicles (Approval of Motor Bikes and Motor Trikes) Notice* 2022.

# 2—Commencement

This notice will come into operation on the date of publication in this Gazette.

# **3**—Approved motor bikes and motor trikes

For the purposes of Schedules 2 and 3 of the *Motor Vehicles Regulations 2010* and the transitional provisions of the *Motor Vehicles Variation Regulations 2005* (No 233 of 2005), the motor bikes and motor trikes specified in Schedule 1 are approved.

# Schedule 1—Approved motor bikes and motor trikes

The following are approved:

- All motor bikes and motor trikes built before December 1960 with an engine capacity not exceeding 660ml
- All motor bikes and motor trikes with an engine capacity not exceeding 260 milliliters and a power to weight ratio not exceeding 150 kilowatts per tonne, except the following:

Suzuki RGV250

Kawasaki KR250 (KR-1 and KR1s models)

Honda NSR250

Yamaha TZR250

Aprilia RS250

• All motor bikes and motor trikes with electric powered engines, with a power output not in excess of 25 kw

Motor bikes and Motor trikes with electric powered engines listed in the table below are approved:

MAKE	MODEL	VARIANT NAME	YEAR(S)	CAPACITY
EVOKE	URBAN S		2020-	Electric
			current	
	URBAN CLASSIC		2020-	Electric
			current	
FONZARELLI	125	125	2014-2015	Electric
ZERO	DS	Zero DS	Unit 2015	Electric
	S	Zero S	Until 2015	Electric

Motor bikes and motor trikes with an engine capacity not less than 261ml and not exceeding 660ml listed in the table below are approved:

NAME	MODEL	VARIANT NAME	YEAR(S)	CAPACITY
AJP	PR7	PR7	2017	600
AJS	MODEL 18	MODEL 18	pre 1963	497
	MODEL 20	MODEL 20	1955-61	498
APRILIA	Moto 6.5	Moto 6.5	1998-99	649
	M35	SR MAX 300	2012	278
	PEGASO 650	DUAL SPORTS	1994-01	652
	PEGASO 650	OUTBACK	2000-01	652
	PEGASO 650	Factory 650	2007-08	660
	PEGASO 650 I.E.	OUTBACK	2001-02	652
	PEGASO 650 I.E.	DUAL SPORTS	2001-06	652
	SCARABEO 300	VRG	2009	278
	SCARABEO 400	SCARABEO 400	2007	399
	SCARABEO 500	SCARABEO 500	2007-08	460
	SPORTCITY300	SPORTCITY300	2010-12	300
	STRADA 650	ROAD	2006-08	659
	STRADA 650	TRAIL	2006-08	659
	VS (SXV 550)	SXV 550 (VSS-VSL) 14.5kW	2006-08	553
	VS (SXV 450)	SXV 450 (VSR-VSH) 14kW	2006-08	449
	VP (RXV 450)	VPV-VPT-VPH 18.3kW	2006-10	449
	VP (RXV 550)	VPZ- VPX- VPL 20kW	2006-10	553
ASIAWING	LD450	ODES MCF450	2011-13	449
ATK	605	605	1995	598
BENELLI	VELVET DUSK	VELVET DUSK	2003-05	383
	LEON	Leoncino 500	2018-20	500
	P10	BN 302	2015 on	300
	P18	LEONCINO 500	2017 on	500
	P18	LEONCINO 500 TRAIL	2018 on	500
	P18	BENELLI	2017	500
	P16	TRK502	2017	500
	P16	<b>TRK 502X</b>	2018 on	500
	P25	GT600 RESTRICTED	2014-15	600
	P25	<b>BN 600 RESTRICTED</b>	2013-on	600
	P36	502C	2019	500
ВЕТА	RR E3	RR350	2011	349
	RR E3	<b>RR</b> 400	2010-11	398
	RR E3	RR450	2010-11	449

NAME	MODEL	VARIANT NAME	YEAR(S)	CAPACITY
	RR450	RR450	2008	448
	RR450	RR450	2000-07	448
	RR E3	RR520	2010-11	498
	RR300 2T	RR300 2T	2019	293
	RR350 4T	RR350 4T	2019	349
	RR390 4T	RR390 4T	2019	386
	RR430 4T	RR430 4T	2019	431
	RR480 4T	RR480 4T	2019	478
	RR525	RR525	2008	510
	RR525	RR525	2000-07	510
	FUPA RR E3	RR 2T 300	2012-17	293
	FUPA RR E3	RR350 20 & RR350 15	2016-17	349
	FUPA RR E3	RR390 31 & RR390 16	2016-17	386
	FUPA RR E3	RR430 32 & RR430 17	2016-17	431
	FUPA RR E3	RR480 33 & RR480 18	2016-17	478
	FUPA E5	E5 00	2015	293
	FUPA E5	E8/03	2016/17	293
	BETA	FUPA RR E3	2018	293
	BMA RR	RR350 15	2018	349
	BMA RR	RR390 16	2018	386
	BMA RR	RR430 17	2018	431
	BMA RR	RR480 18	2018	478
	XTRAINER 300			
	2T	XTRAINER 300 2T	2019	293
BMW	C400X	0C09/C400X	2018-20	350
	C650	C600 SPORT	ALL	647
	C650	C650 GT/Sport	All	647
	F650	FUNDURO	1995-00	652
	F650CS	SCARVER	2002-05	652
	F650CS	SE ROAD	2004-06	652
	F650GS	DAKAR	2000-08	652
	F650GS	F650GS	2000-08	652
	F650ST	F650ST	1998	652
			2009-	(50)
	F650	G650 GS	2016	652
			2012-	< <b>5</b> 0
	F650	G650 GS Sertao	2016	652
	G 450 X	G 450 X	2008-10	450
	G650GS	Sertao	All	650
	G310	G310R-0G01	2016-17	313
	G310GS	G310GS-0G02	2016	313
	R45	R45	All	453
	R50	R50	1969	499
	R60	R60	1967	590
	R65	R65	1981-88	650
	R65LS	R65LS	1982-86	650
	R69	R69	1961	600
BOLWELL	LM25W	FIRENZE	2009	263
BRAAAP	ST	450	2016-17	450
BRP	Can am Ryker	Rotax 600 ACE	2018	599
BSA	A50	A50	1964-70	500
	A65	A65	1966-69	650
	A7	A7	1961	500
	11/		1701	200

NAME	MODEL	VARIANT NAME	YEAR(S)	CAPACITY
	B40	B40	1969	350
	B44	B44	1967-71	440
	B50	B50	1971	495
	B50SS	<b>B50SS GOLDSTAR</b>	1971	498
	GOLDSTAR	BJ055 GOLDSTAK	19/1	490
	GOLD STAR	GOLD STAR	1962	500
	LIGHTNING	LIGHTNING	1964	654
	SPITFIRE MKIII	SPITFIRE MKIII	1967	650
	THUNDERBOLT	THUNDERBOLT	1968	499
BUELL	Blast	STREET FIGHTER	2002-07	491
BUG	SEE KYMCO			
BULTACO	ALPINA	ALPINA	1974	350
	FRONTERA	FRONTERA	1974	360
	SHERPA	SHERPA	1974	350
CAGIVA	360WR	360WR	1998-02	348
	410TE	410TE	1996	399
	610TEE	610TEE	1998	576
	650 ALAZZURA	650 ALAZZURA	1984-88	650
	650 ELFANT	650 ELFANT	1985-88	650
	CANYON 500	DUAL SPORTS	1999-06	498
	CANYON 600	DUAL SPORTS	1996-98	601
	<b>RIVER 600</b>	RIVER 600	1995-98	601
	W16 600	W16 600	1995-97	601
ССМ	GP Series	GP450-1(A1 30kW)	2015-16	450
00112	GP Series	GP450-2(A1 30kW)	2015-16	450
СЕМОТО	CF 650	CF650NK-LAM	2012-16	649
0111010	CF 650	CF650TK-LAM	2013-17	649
	CF 650 (400NK)	400NK	2016-17	400
	CF 650	650NK-LAM	2016-17	649
	CF650	650MT	2016-17	649
	CF650	650GT	2019-on	649
COSSCK	650	Ural	1974	649
DERBI	MULHACEN	MULHACEN	2008	659
DERDI	RAMBLA	RA 300	2000	278
DNEPR	KAWDLA K650	K650	1972	650
	K650	K650 DNEPR	1972	650
	MT9	MT9	1907-74	650
DUCATI	400 MONSTER	400 MONSTER	2002	398
DUCAII	400 MONSTER 400 SIE	400 S I E monster	2002	398 398
	400 SIE 400 SS JUNIOR	400 S I E monster 400 SS	1989-96	398 398
	400 SS JOINOR 400SS	400 SS 400SS	1992-95	398
	400SS 500SL	PANTAH	1992-95	499
	500SL 500GTL	500GTL	1984	499 497
	500 DESMO	500 Sport Desmo	1973-77	497 497
	600 MONSTER	600 MONSTER	1978	497 583
		DARK		
	600 MONSTER		1998-01	583 583
	600 S	600 SUPERSPORT	1994-97	583
	600M	600M	1994-01	583
	600SL	PANTAH	1980-84	583
	600SS	600SS	1994-98	583
	620 MONSTER	M620 LITE	2003-07	618
	LITE		_000 07	

NAME	MODEL	VARIANT NAME	YEAR(S)	CAPACITY
	620			
	MULTISTRADA	MTS620 24.5Kw	2005-07	618
	LITE			
	659 Monster	Monster 659	All	659
	DM 350	350	pre 85	350
	DM 450	450	pre 85	448
	DM450	DM450	1972	450
	DM500	DM500	1981-84	498
	F3	350 F3	1986-	349
	Г3	550 F5	1989	549
	F4	400 F4	1986	400
	M4	M620ie LITE	2003-04	620
	M5	Monster 659	2011	659
	KA (Scrambler)	00AA Sixty2	2015-16	399
	MD	02AU	2017	659
ELSTAR				
SHINERAY	XY400	WB400 & WB400c	2015-16	397
	XY400	CLASSIC C	2018	397
	XY400	SCRAMBLER C	2018	397
	XY400	CAFÉ RACER	2018	397
	XY400	CAFÉ RACER F	2018	397
ENFIELD	BULLET	CLASSIC	1993-08	499
	BULLET	DELUXE	1993-08	499
	BULLET	ELECTRA ROAD	2006-08	499
	BULLET 350	DELUXE	1988-01	346
	BULLET 350	SUPERSTAR	1988-01	340 346
	BULLET 350	CLASSIC	1988-95	340 346
	BULLETT 500	500	1993-01	499
	BULLET 65	ROAD	2003-04	499 499
	LIGHTNING	ROAD	2003-04 2000-08	499 499
	MILITARY	ROAD	2002-08	499
FANTIC	TAURAS	DIESEL	2001	325
FANTIC	TZ	EC300	2011-12	300
	TZ	Gas Gas EC30	2012	300
	CA50	Flat Track	2020-	449
			current	-
	CA50	Scrambler	2020-	449
			current	-
	CA50	Rally	2020-	449
		•	current	
GAS-GAS	4E (IPA 48807)	EC 30	2018	299
	$4\mathrm{E}$	EC 30	2017	299
	$4\mathrm{E}$	EC25	2017	299
	EC Series	EC300	2001-	293
	LC Stills	LC300	current	275
	EC Series	EC350F	2021-	350
	LC SCHES	LCJJUF	current	550
	EC400	FSE ENDURO	2002-03	399
	EC450	FSE ENDURO	2003-05	449
	EC450	FSE SUPERMOTARD	2003-08	449
	EC450	FSR ENDURO	2006-08	449
	EC450	I SK LINDUKU	2000 00	777
	FS 400	FS40A	2000 00	398

NAME	MODEL	VARIANT NAME	YEAR(S)	CAPACITY
	FS 500	FS50 (503)	2006-	503
			2009	
	FSE 400	400	2002	398
	FSE 450	450	2003-08	398
	PAMPERA	320 TRAIL	1998-02	333
	PAMPERA	400 TRAIL	2006-08	399
	PAMPERA	450	2007-08	443
	<b>SM400</b>	SUPERMOTARD	2003-08	399
	SM450	SUPERMOTARD	2003-08	443
	TT300	EC300	1998-08	295
	EC ENDURO	EC30	2016-17	299
	CONTACT ES	280 ES	2018	272
GILERA	FUOCO 500	FUOCO 500	2007-13	493
OILLINA	NEXUS 500	NEXUS 500	2007-13	460
HARLEY	NEXOS 500	NEXOS 500	2003-08	400
	SS350	Sprint	69-1974	350
DAVIDSON	VCCCE	-	2014 15	404
	XGS SERIES	Street 500 -XG500 16MY	2014-15	494
	XGS SERIES	Street 500	2016-on	494
	XGS SERIES	XG500 17MY	2016-17	494
HONDA	600V TRANSALP	600V	1988	583
	BROS	BROS	1992	399
	C70	DREAM	pre 1970	305
	CB300R	CBF300NA	2018-20	286
	CB300 (FA)	CB300FA	2014-17	286
	CB350	CB350	1969	348
	CB350F	CB350F	1973	325
	CB360	CB360	1973-75	360
			1981 -	
	CB400	CB400	2013	395
	CB400F	CB400F	1975-77	408
	CB400N CB400N	CB400N	1981	395
	CB400N CB400T	CB400T CB400T	1981	408
	СБ4001	CB4001		408
	CB400 ABS	CB400 ABS	2008 -	399
			2013	450
	CB450	CB450	1967-75	450
	CB500 FOUR	CB500-FOUR K,K1,K2	1971-73	498
	CB500 TWIN	CB500T	1974-78	498
	CB500F	CB500FA/F	2012-19	471
	CB500X	CB500XA	2013-17	471
	CB550	CB550	1974-78	544
	CDC50E	CDC50EA LTD 1Com	2015-	640
	CB650F	CB650FA-LTD-16ym	2017	649
			2015-	<b>5</b> 40
	CBR650F	CBR650FA-LTD-16ym	2016	649
	CB650	CB650	All	650
	CBR500R	CBR500RA	2012-19	471
	CBR650R	CBR650R	2012-17	649
	CBK050K CBX550	CBX550F	1982-85	049 572
	CX500	CX500	1979	500
	CMX500A	CMX500A	2016-20	471
	CJ360	CJ360	1976	356
	CJ360 CL450 CRF150	CJ360 CL450 150R/RB	1976 1965-77 All	356 444 149

NAME	MODEL	VARIANT NAME	YEAR(S)	CAPACITY
	CRF300	CRF300 Rally	2020	286
	CRF300	CRF300L	2020	286
	CRF400R	CRF400R	2013	399
	CRF450L	CRF450L	2018	449
	CRF450X	CRF450X	2005-09	449
	CX500	CX500	1977-82	495
	DEAUVILLE	NT650V	2002-06	647
	CBR300R	CBR300R	2014-15	286
	CBR300R	CBR300RA	2014-15	286
	Fortza 300	NSS300 Forza	All	279
	FJS400A	SW-T400	2009	399
	FT500	FT500	1984	498
	FTS600D	SILVERWING	2006-08	582
	GB400	GB400	All	399
	GB500	GB507	1987-91	498
	GL400	GL400	1985	396
	NF02	SH300	2009	279
	NSS300	NSS300	2013	279
	NSS350	NSS350 Forza	2020	330
	NT400	NT400	1989-92	400
	NT650V	DEAUVILLE	2003-06	647
	NTV650	REVERE	1989-92	647
	NX650	DOMINATOR	1988-00	644
	PCX150	PCX150	153	
	REVERE	REVERE	1990	647
	SL350	SL350	1972	348
	OBI RVF400	OBI RVF400 Otobai	All	400
	VFR400	import model only		
	Steed	steed	2002	398
	VT400	VT 400	All	398
	VT400C	SHADOW	2009	399
	VT500	VT500	1983-87	491
	VT600C	VT600C	1993-00	583
	VT600C	SHADOW VLX	1988-	583
		VDD 500	2008	
	XBR500	XBR500	1986-89	499
	XBR500SH	XBR500	1986-89	499
	XL350	XL350	1984-87	339
	XL500	XL500 XL600R	1979-84	498 580
	XL600R XL600RMG		1984-87 1986-88	589 591
	XL600KMG XL600VH	XL600RMG TRANSALP	1980-88	583
	XL650V	TRANSALP	2002-08	585 647
	XL650	TRANSALP	2002-08	647
	XR250	XR250R	All	047
	XR350	XR250K XR350	1983	339
	XR350R	XR350 XR350R	1983-84	339
	XR350R XR350R	XR350R XR350R	1985-86	353
	XR350K XR400	XR400	1985-80	333 397
	XR400 MOTARD	XR400 XR400M	1996-08	397
	XR400 MOTARD XR400R	XR400IVI XR400R	1996-08	397
	XR500R	XR400R XR500R	1983-84	498
	XR600R	XR500R XR600R	1985-00	591
			1,00,00	- / I

NAME	MODEL	VARIANT NAME	YEAR(S)	CAPACIT
	XR650L	XR650L/ XR650R	2001-06	644
	VD CCOD	XR650R Kss and Mss	2004.05	(10)
	XR650R	(only)	2004-05	649
		XR650R (Australian	1999-	
	XR650R	version only)	2001	649
	CRF450L	CRF450L2019YM	2018	449
HUNTER	DD350E-6C	DAYTONA	2010-13	320
HUNTER	DD350E-6C	SPYDER	2010-13	320
	DD350E-0C DD350E-2		2010-13	320 320
		BOBBER		
HUSABERG	FE350	ENDURO	All	350
	FE400	ENDURO	All	399
	FE450	ENDURO	2008-14	449
	FE501E	ENDURO	1997-12	501
	FE501	ENDURO	2012-14	510
	FE570	ENDURO	2008-10	565
	FE600E	ENDURO	1997-00	595
	FE650E	ENDURO	2004-08	628
	FE650E	ENDURO	2000-04	644
	FS450E	ENDURO	2004	449
	FS450	SUPERMOTARD	2008-10	449
	FS570	SUPERMOTARD	2000-10	565
	FS650C/E	SUPERMOTARD	2009-10	628
	FS650E	SUPERMOTARD	2002-04	644
	TE300	TE Series	2010-14	293
	FE01	FE450 MY05 (Ab)	2004	449
	FE01	FS650 MY05 (Db)	2004	628
HUSQVARNA	300WR	WR300	2008-12	298
	310TE	TE310 A3	2009-13	303
	310TE	TE310 A2	2008-10	298
	350TE	TE350	1995	349
	400SM	SUPERMOTARD	2002-04	400
	400TE	ENDURO	2000-01	400
	410TE	ENDURO	1998-00	400
	410TE	ENDURO	1994-97	415
	450SM/R/RR	SUPERMOTARD	2003-08	449
	450TC	MOTOCROSS	2001-08	449
	450TE	ENDURO	2001-07	449
	450TE-IE	ENDURO	2007-08	449
	450TXC	TRAIL	2007-08	449
	A6 SMR 449	A600AB	2010-12	450
	A6 TE 449	A600AATE449	2010-13	450
	A6 SMR 511	A601AB	2010-12	478
	A6 TE 511	A601AATE511	2010-13	478
	A6 SMR 511	A602AB	2012	478
	A8	0H11B 35kW	2012	652
	510SM	SUPERMOTARD	2013	501
	510TC			
	5101C	MOTOCROSS	2004-07	501
	510TE	ENDURO	1986- 2008	510
	510TE-IE	TE510IE	2008	510
	570TE	570TE(RP)	2000	577
	610SM	SUPERMOTARD	2000-08	577

NAME	MODEL	VARIANT NAME	YEAR(S)	CAPACITY
	AE430	ENDURO	1986-88	430
	SMS630	A401AB SMS630	2010-on	600
	SMR449	SMR449	2011	449.6
	SMR511	SMR511	2012	447.5
	TE	TE300	2014 on	298
	TE	TE300	2016-17	293
	FE	FE350	2014-on	350
	FE	FE450	2014 on	449
	FE	FE450	2016-17	450
	FE	FE501	2014 on	501
	FE	FE501	2016-17	510
	TE449	Enduro 2014	2013	449.6
	TE510 (A2)	Enduro 2013	2006- 2013	477.5
	TE630	A401AA TE630	2010-on	600
	TR650	TR650 Terra	2013	652
	WR260	ENDURO	1990-91	260
	WR300	ENDURO	2010-13	293
	WR360	ENDURO	1991-03	349
	WR400	ENDURO	1984-88	396
	WR400 WR430	ENDURO	1988	430
	Pilen Series	VP 401	2018-on	373
	Pilen Series	SP 401	2018-on	373
HYOSUNG	GT650 EFI	GT650EFI Lams	All	647
mosung	GT650R EFI	GT650R EFI Learner	All	647
	GV650C/S	Lams model	All	647
INDIAN	VELO	VELO	All 1969	500
JAWA	350	350 (24 DO A D	1974	350
	634 ROAD	634 ROAD	1984-85	343
	638 ROAD	638 ROAD	1985-86	343
JONWAY	MALIBU	MALIBU 320	2012	320
KAWASAKI	EN400	Vulcan	1986	400
	EN450	450LTD	1985-87	454
	EN500	Vulcan	1990-02	500
	ER-5	ER500	1999-06	498
	ER-6NL ABS	ER-6nl ABS learner	2012-	649
		model	2016	
	ER-650C	ER-6nL	2009	649
	ER-650C	ER-6nL ABS	2009-11	649
	ER650H	ER650H LAMS (Z650L)	2016-17	649
	ER650H	ER659K LAM (Z650L)	2019	649
	ER650H	ER650M LAMS (Z650RS)	2021-on	649
	EX300A (Ninja	EX300B Ninja/ special	2012 16	296
	300)	(A&B)	2012-16	270
		(A&B) ER300B (Z300 ABS)	2012-10 2015-on	296 296
	300)	. ,		
	300) ER300B EX300B	ER300B (Z300 ABS)	2015-on 2015-	296 296
	300) ER300B EX300B EX400	ER300B (Z300 ABS) EX300B GPX 400R	2015-on 2015- 2018 1987-94	296 296 399
	300) ER300B EX300B EX400 EX400G	ER300B (Z300 ABS) EX300B GPX 400R Ninja 400 & EX400G	2015-on 2015- 2018 1987-94 2018 - on	296 296 399 399
	300) ER300B EX300B EX400	ER300B (Z300 ABS) EX300B GPX 400R	2015-on 2015- 2018 1987-94	296 296 399

NAME	MODEL	VARIANT NAME	YEAR(S)	CAPACITY
	Ninja 650	Ninja 650L ABS	2011-16	649
	EX650K (LAMS)	Ninja 650 L	2016-	649
		Ū.	current	
	GPZ550	GPZ550	1981-90	553
	GT550	Z550	1984-88	553
	KL600	KLR600	1984-87	564
	KL650	KLR650	1987-99	651
	KLE500	DUAL SPORTS	1992-08	498
	KLE300C	KLE300C VERSYS-X 300	2017	295
	KLR600	KL600	1984-87	564
	KLR650E	KL650E	1987- 2012	651
	KL650E	KLR650	2013- 2016	651
	KLX150	KLX150E/KLX150 L	All	
	KLX300R	KLX300R	1996-04	292
	KLX400	KLX400	2003	400
	KLX450R	KLX450R	2007-16	449
	KLX650	KLX650	1989-95	651
	KLX650R	ENDURO	1993-04	651
	KZ400	KZ400	1974-84	398
	KZ440	KZ440	1985	443
	KZ500	KZ500	1979	497
	KZ550	KZ550	1986	547
	LE650D	Versys 650L ABS	2010	649
	LE650D	Versys 650L ABS	2011-14	649
	LTD440	LTD440	1982	443
	LX400	LX400 Eliminator	1989	398
	S2	S2	1972	346
	<b>S</b> 3	<b>S</b> 3	1974	400
			1992-	100
	KLE500	KLE500	2008	498
	KLE650F	Versys 650L ABS KLE650F ABS L & ABS	2014-17	649
	KLE650F	L MY17	2016-17 2014-	649
	EN650B	Vulcan S ABS/ABS L	current	649
	EN650B	EN650E ABS L 1&2	2016-17	649
	W400	EJ400AE	2006-09	399
	Z400B2	KZ400B2	1979	398
	Z400D	KZ400D	1975	398
	Z500	Z500	1980	498
	EX400G	KAWASAKI	2018	399
	ZR550	ZEPHYR ZZP 400	1991-99	553
	ZZR400 ZZR400	ZZR400 ZZR400	1991 1992	399 399
KTM	2T-EXC	300 EXC	2012- 2017	293
	Adventure	390 Adventure	2020-on	373
	300 exc	300exc	All	300
	390 Duke	390 Duke	All	390
	125 EXC	125 EXC	All	125

NAME	MODEL	VARIANT NAME	YEAR(S)	CAPACITY
	300EXC	ENDURO	84-2011	293
	300EXC-E	ENDURO	2007-08	293
	300GS	ENDURO	1990-95	280
	350EXC-F	ENDURO	2011-on	347
	350EXC Special-R	ENDURO	2005-06	350
	360EXC	ENDURO	1996-98	360
	380EXC	ENDURO	2000	368
	RC390	RC390	all	390
	4T-EXC RACING	350 EXC-F	2012- 2016	350
	4T-EXC RACING	450 EXC	2012- 2016	449
	4T-EXC RACING	500 EXC	2012- 2016	510
	400EXC	ENDURO	2008-11	393
	400GS	ENDURO	1993-99	400
	400SC	400SC	1996-98	400
	400TE	400TE	2001	400
	450EXC	ENDURO	2002-07	448
	450EXC	ENDURO	2005-11	449
	450EXC	ENDURO	2011-on	449
	500EXC	ENDURO	2011-on	510
	500GS	ENDURO	1984-91	553
	510EXC	ENDURO	1999-02	510
	520EXC	ENDURO	2000-02	510
	525EXC	ENDURO	2002-05	510
	525EXC-R	ENDURO	2005-07	510
	530EXC	ENDURO	2008-11	510
	600 ENDURO	ENDURO	1987-93	553
	600 ENDURO	ENDURO	1989-90	553
	INCAS	ENDORO	1989-90	555
	625SMC	625SMC	2004	609
	640 4T -EGS	640 LC4-EMY04	2004-05	625
	640 4T -EGS	640 LC4-MY05	2004-05	625
	660 SMC	4T-EGS	2004	654
	Freeride IS DUKE	Freeride (MY12 on) 390 DUKE (C3)	2012 2013	350 373
	Rally	450 RALLY	2017- current	449
	Rally	690 RALLY	2017	654
	IS RC	RC 390	2016-17	373
<b>KYBURZ</b>	DXP	KYBURZ	2017	
КҮМСО	All model	All models		under 300
	DT Series	DT X360/E70000	2021-on	321
	V2	Downtown 350i (V200010, V20020, V20030, V23010-	2015-20	321
	<b>-</b>	V23000, C71100))		
	X-Town	KS60A (300i)	2016-17	276
	XCITING S 400	D62001 & D62000	2019-20	400
	AGILITY 300	T4 (300)	2020	276
LAMBRETTA LARO	All model DD350E-6C	Lambretta Pro Street 350	pre 2008 2011	under 660 320

No. 49 p. 2236

NAME	MODEL	VARIANT NAME	YEAR(S)	CAPACITY
	SPT series	SPT350	2011	320
LAVERDA	500	500	1979	497
LIFAN	All model	All models	2009-10	under 300
LIFENG	Regal Raptor	CRUISER 350	2011	320
MAICO	Enduro	500E	1984-88	488
MATCHLESS	G12	G12 pre 19		646
	G80	HARRIS	1988-90	494
	G80	G80	pre 1963	497
MCI	All models	All models under 250	all	250
MBK	FALCONE	YAMAHA XT660R/X	2005-08	660
MONTESA	COTA 330	TRIAL	1985-86	328
	COTA 335	TRIAL	1986-88	327
	COTA 348T	TRIAL	1984-87	305
	COTA 350	TRIAL	1984-85	349
MOTO GUZZI	350 GT	350 GT	1992	350
	Falcone	Falcone	1972	498
	V35	V35	1977-90	346
	V50	V50	1977-79	490
	V50	Monza	1977-79	490
	V65	V65	1980-85	490 643
	V65	Lario	1982-94 1984-89	643
MOTO MORINI	3.5 ROAD	3.5 ROAD	1984-89 1984-85	043 344
MOTO MORINI				
	350 SPORT	350 SPORT	1974-85	344
	500 CAMEL	TRAIL	1984-86	479
	500 SEI	500 SEI	1984-85	479
	500 STRADA	500 STRADA	1977-85	479
MUZ	BAGHIRA	ENDURO	1999-02	660
MUZ	MASTIFF	SUPERMOTARD	1999-02	660
	SKORPION	REPLICA	1998-02	660
	SKORPION	SPORT	1998-02	660
	SKORPION	TRAVELLER	1998-02	660
	SKORPION	TOUR	1998-02	660
MV AGUSTA	350	350	1972-76	349
NORTON	650SS	650SS	1961-68	650
	ES2	ES2	pre 1963	490
	MANXMAN	b	1961	650
	MODEL 50	MODEL 50	1933-63	348
	MODEL 88	DOMINATOR	pre 1966	497
	NAVIGATOR	NAVIGATOR	1964	350
<b>OZ TRIKE</b>	FUN 500	FUN 500	pre 2008	500
PANTHER	MODEL 100	600	pre 1963	598
	MODEL 120	650	pre 1966	645
PEUGEOT	GEOPOLIS	AEAA	2007-08	399
	SATELIS	AEAA	2007-08	399
	SATELIS	AFAA	2007-08	493
	METROPOLIS	AA	2018	399
PGO	All models	All models under 220	All	220
PIAGGIO	All Models	All models	2010-17	under 350
	PSI M59 (MP3 400)	M59101 (400ie RL)	2006-08	399
<u> </u>	PSI M52	M52101 XEVO 400ie	2006-08	399
QJ MOTORCYCLES	BJ60	BJ60	All	600

NAME	MODEL	VARIANT NAME	YEAR(S)	CAPACITY
	P25	BJ600	All	600
RICKMAN	650	Triumph	1964	649
RIEJU	MR5E	MR300 ENDURO	2020	293
RIEJU	MR5E	MR300 ENDURO PRO	2020	293
RIYA	RY300T (RY)	RY300T	2012-15	288
ROYAL ALLOY	GP300	GP300		278
ROYAL ENFIELD	All models under660	All models under 660	till 2014	
	CNEX	CNEG	2018	648
	CNEX	CNEH	2018	648
		CNEG (CONTINENTAL		
	CNEX	GT 650)	2018-19	648
	CNEX	CNEH (INTERCEPTOR GT 650)	2018-19	648
	UMI CONTINENTAL	CONTINENTAL GT	2015	535
	UMI BULLET	U3S	2015-19	346
	UMI BULLET	BULLET 500 CKE	2015-19	499
			2015 17	
	D4A5C	Himalayan	2010-	411
	D4A5C EFI	Himalayan	2019-20	411
	Meteor	Meteor 350	2020- current	349
<b>RS HONDA</b>	XR400M	MOTARD	2005-08	397
RUDGE WHITWORTH	650	Rudge	pre 1961	650
	G 4		2007-	4.40
SHERCO	<b>S</b> 4	ENDURO 450	2010	448
	~ .		2007-	
	<b>S</b> 4	ENDURO 510	2010	510
	<b>S</b> 4	ENDURO 300	2010	290
	S4 S6	300 2ST	2016-17	293
	S6	300 4ST	2010-17 2015-on	303
	S6	450 4ST	2015-on 2015-on	303 449
CUZUZI	S6	480ST	2021-on	479
SUZUKI	AN400	BURGMAN	2008-14	400
	AN 400	AN 400	2016-17	400
	AN650	BURGMAN	2002-15	638
	Burgman 650	Burgman 650	All	638
	Burgman 400ABS	Burgman 400ABS	All	400
	DR350	All	1991-98	349
	DR400	DR400	1999	400
	DR500	All	1981-84	498
	DR600R	DR600R	1985-90	598
	DR650	All	1990-08	644
	DR650SE	DR650SE	1997-19	644
	DR-Z250	DR-Z250	All	249
	DR-Z400E	DR-Z400E	All	398
	DR-Z400S	DR-Z400S	2005-14	398
	DR-Z400SM	DR-Z400SM V-Strom 650 XT learner	2005-17	398
	DL650XAUE		2014-15	645

NAME	MODEL	VARIANT NAME	YEAR(S)	CAPACITY
	DL650AUE	V Strom	2013- 2015	649
	DL650	DL650 AUE & DL650X AUE	2015-20	645
	SVF650 (Market name-Gladius)	SVF650 U/UA	2009- 2014	645
	SV650-3	SV650 UA	2015- 2017	645
	GN400	GN400	1980-81	400
	GR650	All	1983-88	651
	GS400	GS400	1976-82	400
	RMX450 (market name RMX450Z)	RMX450	2014-15	449
	GS450	All	1981-89	450
	GS500	GS500	2000-13	487
	GS500E	GS500E	1976-99	492
	GS500F	GS500F	2003-13	487
	GS550	All	1977-82	549
	<b>GSR</b> 400	GSR400	2006-08	398
	GSX400	F	1981-04	398
	GSX400	Е	1981-84	398
	GSX650F	GSX650 /FU	2008-12	656
	GT380	GT380	1973-78	380
	GT500	GT500	1976-78	500
	GT550	GT550	1973-78	550
	KATANA 550	KATANA 550	1981-83	550
	LS650	Boulevard S40	2015-17	652
	LS650	SAVAGE	1986-89	652
	PE400	PE400	1980-81	400
	RE5	ROTARY	1974	500
	SFV650U	SFV650U	2009-17	645
	SP370	ENDURO	1978	370
	SV650S LAMS	SV650SU LAMs	2008/201	645
		Gladdius	3	
	MY18	SV650	2018	
	MY18	SV650AUL8	2018	~~~
	T500	T500	1970-74	500
	TS400	TS400	1976	400
	XF650	FREEWIND	1997-01	644
	LS650	LS650	2018	652
	DR650SE	DR650SE	2018	644 208
	DR-Z400E	DR-Z400E	2018	398
	DR-Z400E	DR-Z400 (2006 MY~)	2018	398
	DR-Z400E	DR-Z400	2018	400
	AN400 LS650	AN400 LS650	2018 2018	400 652
	L3030	L3030	2018	
SWM	AI	01/AA and 01/AB	2013-2017	600
	A2	01/AA	2016	300
	A2	03/AA and 03/AB	2016	500
	A3	00-01-02	2016	445
	B3	Silver Vase, Gran Milano	2019-20	445
SYM	All Models	All models under 400	2008-12	400

NAME	MODEL	VARIANT NAME	YEAR(S)	CAPACIT
	LN	GTS 300i Sport	2015-16	278
TGB	All Models	All models under 300	2012	300
TM	300E	ENDURO	2000-08	294
	3002T	ENDURO	2010	297
	400E	ENDURO	2002-03	400
	450E	ENDURO	2003-08	449
	450MX	450MX	2008	449
	4504T	ENDURO	2010	450
	530E	ENDURO	2003-08	430 528
	530MX	530MX	2008	528
	5304T	ENDURO	2010	528
TRIUMPH	21	21	1963	350
	DAYTONA 500	DAYTONA 500	1970	490
	Street triple	LAMs Street Triple 659 L67Ls7	2014	659
	HD Series	HD418MY	2017	660
	L Series	Trident	2020	660
	T100	TIGER	pre-1970	498
			1959-	470
	T120	BONNEVILLE	1939-	649
	TD 5	TROPHY	1974	440
	TR5			449
	TR6	TROPHY	1961 - 73	649
	TR7	TIGER	1971	649
	TRIBSA	TRIBSA	1960-70	650
UBCO	2018 2X2	UBCO	2018	
URAL	DNIEPNER	DNIEPNER	1974	650
	K650	K650	1967-74	650
	MT9	MT9	1974	650
	THRUXTON	THRUXTON	1965-67	499
VESPA	All Models	All models until 1/09/2013		50-300
				270
	PSI M45	M45200 300 S/SS	2016-20	278
	PSI M45	M45202 300 ABS	2018-20	278
	PSI M45	M45710 300 S/SS	2018-20	278
	PSI M45	M45715 300 S/TECH	2019-20	278
	PSI M45	M45710 300	2018	278
	PSI M45	M45719 GTS 300 SS HPE	2020	278
	PSI M45	M45724 GTS 300 SG	2020	278
	PSI M45	M45200 300 S/SS M45202 300 ABS	2016- 2018	278
	PSI M45	M45202 300 ABS	2018	278
	PSI M45	M452710 300 S/SS	Jul-05	278
	PSI MA3	MA330 300 E4 (GTS/SUPER/SS)	2016-17	278
VOR	400 ENDURO	400 ENDURO	2000	399
VUN				
	450 ENDURO	450 ENDURO	2002	450
	500 ENDURO	500 ENDURO	2001	503
	530 ENDURO	530 ENDURO	2001	530
	VOR ENDURO	400SM	2000-01	399
	VOR ENDURO	500SM	2000-01	503
XINGYUE	XY400Y	XY400Y	2008-09	400

NAME	MODEL	VARIANT NAME	YEAR(S)	CAPACIT
	FZ6R	FZ6R	All	600
	FZ600	FZ600	All	600
	IT426	IT426	1987	426
	IT465	IT465	1987	465
	IT490	IT490	1983	490
	MT-03	MT03	2011 on	660
	MT 07	MT07 LAMS, MTN660- A	2015-on	655
	MT 07	MT07, MTN660	2015-on	655
	MTM660	XSR700	2016-on	655
	MTT660-A	RM 161	2016-17	655
	MTN320	MTN320-A	All	321
	MX400	MX400	1976	400
	RD350	RD350	to 1975	350
	RD400	RD400	1976	398
	RT2	RT2	1970	360
	RT350	RT350	1972	347
	SR400	SR400	All 1978-	400
	SR500	SR500	1981	499
	SRX400	SRX400	1985-90	400
	SRX600	SRX600	1986-96	608
	SZR660	SZR660	1997	659
	Tenere	Tener	All	660
	Tricity 300 (MWD300)	Tricity 300 (MWD300)	2020- current	292
	T MAX	Tmax 530	All	530
	TT350	TT350	1986-01	346
	TT500	TT500	1975	500
			All	500 595
	TT600	TT600		
	TT600E	TT600E	All	595
	MT-07	MT-07 LAMs	2015-19	655
	MTM660	XSR700	2017-20	655
	TT600R	TT600R	All	595
	TX650	TX650	1976	653
	WR400F	WR400F	1998 - 2000	399
	WR426F	Belgarda import ONLY	2001	426
	WR450F	WR450F	All	450
	WR450F	WR450F (2GC)	All	449
	XJ550	XJ550	1981-82	528
	XJ6	XJ6FL/NL (25kW & 35kW)	All	600
	VIC	,	A 11	<b>C</b> 00
	XJ6	XJ6SL (25kW)	All	600
	XJR400	ZJR400	1999	400
	XJR400	4HM	2003	399
	XS360	XS360	All	359
	XS400	XS400	All	391
	XSR700	RM131	2015-17	655
	XP500	XP500	All	499
	XP500	XP500	All	530
	XS650	XS650	1972-	653

NAME	MODEL	VARIANT NAME	YEAR(S)	CAPACITY
	XT250	XT250	All	249
	XT350	XT350	All	346
	XT500	XT500	All	499
	XT550	XT550	All	552
	XT600	XT600	All	590
	XT660R	XT660R	All	659
	XT660X	XT660X	All	659
	XT660Z T N R	XT660Z	All	660
	XTZ660	XT660Z Tenere	All	659
	XV400	XV400 Virago	1983	399
	XV535	XV535 Virago	All years	535
	XVS400	XVS400 Dragstar	2001-03	400
	XVS650A/custom	XVS650 custom and classic	All years	649
	XZ400	XZ400	1982	399
	XZ550	XZ550	1982-83	550
	<b>YP400</b>	MAJESTY	All	395
	YZF R3	YZF R3A	All	321
	CZD300 (X- Max300)	CZD300-A	2016-20	292
ZHEJIANG	HT300T	Base	2015	275

An approved motor bike and motor trike must:

- Be the standard model and variant as specified on the above list; and
- Not be modified in any way that increases its power-to-weight ratio.

# **Schedule 2—Revocation**

The Motor Vehicles (Approval of Motor Bikes and Motor Trikes) Notice 2022 No 1 made on 5 May 2022.

(Gazette no.29, p.1159) is revoked.

Dated: 8 July 2022

# STUART GILBERT DEPUTY REGISTRAR OF MOTOR VEHICLES

# PASSENGER TRANSPORT REGULATIONS 2009

Amendment to Fares and Charges for Regular Passenger Services Within Metropolitan Adelaide

Pursuant to regulation 149(1)(a) and (1)(b) of the *Passenger Transport Regulations* 2009, I have determined that the fares and charges to be paid by passengers on a regular passenger service are the fares and charges set out in the Determination below.

This Determination replaces the fares and charges determination made under the *Passenger Transport Regulations 2009* and published in the *South Australian Government Gazette* on 9 June 2022 (p 1387).

The fares and charges in this determination will be effective from the date that this determination is published in the *Government Gazette*. Dated: 7 July 2022

HON TOM KOUTSANTONIS MP Minister for Infrastructure and Transport

# DETERMINATION

						Y PERIOD		
				(and y	where ticke	ts available	from)	
				Interpeak		Peak		
Journey	Ticket Type	No. of Journeys	Ticket outlets & Fare vending machines	Selected fare vending machines	On trams and O-Bahn buses	Ticket outlets & Fare vending machines	Selected fare vending machines	On trams and O-Bahn buses
1. Regular fares								
<ul> <li>For a journey(s) by a passenger who is not eligible for a concession fare</li> </ul>	Singletrip+^	1	-	\$4.00	-	-	\$5.90	-
	Daytrip *+	Unlimited	-	-	-	-	\$11.20	-
	Metrocard^	1	\$2.25	-	-	\$4.05	-	-
	Tap and Pay ticket#	1	-	-	\$2.25	-	-	\$4.05
2. Concession fares								
<ul> <li>For a journey(s) by a holder of a valid travel concession card or tertiary student identification card</li> </ul>	Singletrip+^	1	-	\$1.40	-	-	\$3.00	-
	Daytrip *+	Unlimited	-	-	-	-	\$5.60	-
	Metrocard^	1	\$1.10	-	-	\$2.00	-	-
• For a journey(s) by a holder of a valid	Singletrip+^	1	-	\$1.40	-	-	\$3.00	-
secondary student identification card and by a child from the age of 5 years and under 15	Daytrip *+	Unlimited	-	-	-	-	\$5.60	-
years	Metrocard^	1	\$1.10	-	-	\$1.40	-	-
• For a journey(s) on trains only for bicycles	Singletrip+^	1	-	\$1.40	-	-	\$3.00	-
and surfboards, accompanied by a passenger	Daytrip *+	Unlimited	-	-	-	-	\$5.60	-
(each item)**	Metrocard^	1	\$1.10	-	-	\$2.00	-	-
* Daytrip tickets							1	1
A parent/guardian holding a valid Daytrip ticke charge by up two children under 15 years of ag		blic holidays	or South A	ustralian s	chool holic	lays may be	accompan	ied free of
** Bicycle travel on trains								
Bicycles may be carried free on train services	at the following t	imes:						
•Monday to Friday – 9.01 am to 3.00 pm and •Saturday, Sunday and public holidays – all	day, when space is	s available						
Holders of a valid South Australian Seniors c	ard may carry a bi	cycle for free	at all times	s, when spa	ace is availa	able.		
+ Singletrip and Daytrip tickets								

These tickets are not available for sale from ticket outlets, however they can be purchased onboard trams and trains via fare vending machines. These tickets can also be purchased from other selected fare vending machines – see the Adelaide Metro website (adelaidemetro.com.au) for further details.

# ^ Singletrip tickets and Metrocards

A Singletrip ticket and a Metrocard can be used to transfer to any bus, tram or train service within 2 hours of first validation at no additional charge.

# # Tap and Pay tickets

• A Tap and Pay ticket is available by tapping an acceptable Mastercard or Visa credit/debit card, or linked digital device, on a smart validator on a tram or O-Bahn bus.

• Tap and Pay ticket fares are aggregated daily and charged to the Mastercard or Visa credit/debit card used to travel, or to the Mastercard or Visa credit/debit card linked to the digital device used to travel.

• A Mastercard or Visa credit/debit card, or linked digital device, used to purchase a Tap and Pay ticket can be used to transfer to any tram or O-Bahn bus service within 2 hours of first purchasing the fare, at no additional charge. To transfer, tap this Mastercard or Visa credit/debit card, or linked digital device, on a smart validator on the next service(s).

	Fare	Ticket Type
3. Special Vehicles	As determined.	Zone
<ul><li>Class 3 Special Vehicle</li><li>Class 6 Special Vehicle</li></ul>	Regular fare only (no concessions available)	Zone
4. Peak and Interpeak Periods	Peak	
	All times (other than Interpeak)	
	Interpeak	
	Monday to Friday 9:01 am to 3:00 pm	
	All day Sundays	
	All day public holidays	

	Fare	Ticket Type
	Seniors card holders	
	Holders of a valid South Australian Seniors card travel for free at all times on any journey. Holders of a valid Seniors card from other Australian States and Territories may travel for free using a temporary Seniors Ticket:	
	• on weekdays (except from 7:01 am to 9:00 am and except from 3:01 pm to 7:00 pm); and	
	• all day on Saturday, Sunday and public holidays.	
	From 7:01 am to 9:00 am and from 3:01 pm to 7:00 pm on weekdays, holders of a Seniors card from other Australian States and Territories must purchase a concession fare.	
5. Seniors Metrocard	No charge – provided through the Office for Ageing Well	
6. Concession and Student Metrocards	\$2.50 per cord a minimum of	
• For purchase of a Metrocard by a holder of a valid Concession or Student card	\$3.50 per card, a minimum of \$5.00 recharge required	
7. Regular Metrocard	\$5.00 per card, a minimum of	
For purchase of a Regular Metrocard	\$5.00 recharge required	
<ul> <li>8. 28 Day Pass</li> <li>Unlimited travel on all Adelaide Metro services for 28 consecutive days</li> </ul>	Regular \$107.00	20 D D
Ominined travel on an Adelaide Metro services for 28 consecutive days	Concession \$53.50 Student \$26.50	28 Day Pass
9. 14 Day Pass	Regular \$64.50	
• Unlimited travel on all Adelaide Metro services for 14 consecutive days	Concession \$32.20	14 Day Pass
	Student \$16.10	
10. 3 Day Visitor Pass		2 Day Daga
• Unlimited travel on all Adelaide Metro services for 3 consecutive days	\$26.00	3 Day Pass
11. Primary School Groups	No charge for travel	
• Unlimited travel on all Adelaide Metro services for an organised school group on a planned school excursion, including for up to 4 adults (Monday to Friday only)	commencing between 9.30am and 3pm	
12. Cruise Ship Daytrip Metrocard	Regular Cruise Ship	The Daytrip Metrocard is only
<ul> <li>Unlimited travel all day until 4:30am on any bus, train or tram service</li> <li>Two children under 15 years of age travel free at all times when accompanied by an adult using a Cruise Ship Daytrip Metrocard</li> </ul>	Daytrip Metrocard \$10.00	available to cruise ship passengers with a valid cruise ship identification
r r	Concession Cruise Ship	The Daytrip Metrocard is only
	Daytrip Metrocard \$5.00	sold at the Adelaide Metro Outlet at Outer Harbor Railway Station and the InfoCentre within the Adelaide Railway Station
13. Special Community Ticket	\$20.00	10 trips

# PETROLEUM AND GEOTHERMAL ENERGY ACT 2000

Surrender of Geothermal Exploration Licence—GEL 223

Notice is hereby given that I have accepted the surrender of the abovementioned exploration licence under the provisions of the *Petroleum* and *Geothermal Energy Act 2000*, pursuant to delegated powers dated 29 June 2018 -

No. of Licence	Licensee	Locality	Effective Date of Surrender	Reference
GEL 223	Osiris Energy Ltd	Otway Basin	1 July 2022	F2012/000750
Date: 1 July 2022			Departm	NICK PANAGOPOULOS A/Executive Director Energy Resources Division tent for Energy and Mining ster for Energy and Mining

# PETROLEUM AND GEOTHERMAL ENERGY ACT 2000

# Suspension of Petroleum Exploration Licences-PELs 120, 121, 122, 123, 160, 288, 289, 290 and 331

Pursuant to section 90 of the *Petroleum and Geothermal Energy Act 2000*, notice is hereby given that the abovementioned Licences have been suspended for the periods indicated below, pursuant to delegated powers dated 29 June 2018.

PELs 121, 122, 160, 288, 289, 290 and 331 for the period from 5 June 2022 to 4 June 2023 inclusive;

# PEL 120 for the period from 8 July 2022 to 7 July 2023 inclusive; and

# PEL 123 for the period from 21 July 2022 to 20 July 2023 inclusive

- PELs 121 and 122 will now expire on 31 December 2024. PEL 120 will now expire on 1 January 2024. PEL 123 will now expire on 5 July 2028. PEL 160 will now expire on 31 August 2027. PELs 288, 289, 290 and 331 are now due to expire on 31 May 2026.

Date: 8 July 2022

NICK PANAGOPOULOS A/Executive Director Energy Resources Division Department for Energy and Mining Delegate of the Minister for Energy and Mining

# PUBLIC FINANCE AND AUDIT ACT 1987

TREASURER'S QUARTERLY STATEMENT

Summary of the Statement on the Consolidated Account Quarters and 9 Months Ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

(Prepared on a Cash Basis)

- Nine months ended -			- Qu	- Quarter ended -				
31 March	31 March	Variation	31 March	31 March	Variation			
2022	2021		2022	2021				
\$ 000	\$ 000	\$ 000	\$ 000	\$ 000	\$ 000			
			RECEIPTS					
9,887,613	7,511,716	2,375,897	3,376,753	2,795,212	581,541			
			PAYMENTS					
13,788,845	13,076,698	712,147	4,118,412	3,815,524	302,88			
		FINANC	ING REQUIREMENT					
3,901,232	5,564,982	-1,663,750	741,659	1,020,312	-278,65			
		CONSOLIDA	TED ACCOUNT RESULT					
		D	eficit / - Surplus					
3,901,232	5,564,982	-1,663,750	741,659	1,020,312	-278,65			

# Statement of the Receipts and Borrowings on the Consolidated Account Quarters and 9 Months Ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

	(Prepared on a Ca.	sh Basis)			
		- Nine months ended -		- Quarter ended -	
	Budget	31 March	31 March	31 March	31 March
	2021-22	2022	2021	2022	2021
RECEIPTS -	000 \$	\$ 000	\$ 000	\$ 000	\$ 000
Taxation -					
Commonwealth Places Mirror Tax	31,071	22,479	19,726	7,650	7,708
Gambling	451,174	334,374	258,447	129,006	190,164
Land Tax	574,080	255,714	380,964	127,547	57,681
Payroll Tax	1,742,876	1,268,576	1,011,580	433,370	381,123
Stamp Duties	1,617,821	1,407,695	1,096,297	578,757	435,752
Total Taxation	4,417,022	3,288,838	2,767,014	1,276,330	1,072,428
Contributions from State Undertakings	215,019	46,730	50,894	8,918	20,679
Fees and Charges	562,181	478,694	256,323	154,501	111,639
Recoveries	208,115	43,990	44,018	13,540	6,955
Royalties	322,938	255,563	207,927	70,546	82,633
Commonwealth -					
General Purpose Payments	6,711,044	5,385,909	3,982,066	1,714,648	1,427,889
National Partnership Payments	188,064	162,505	19,802	74,055	16,175
Specific Purpose Payments	221,005	165,984	164,178	55,481	54,984
Total Commonwealth	7,120,113	5,714,398	4,166,046	1,844,184	1,499,048
Other Receipts	18,313	59,400	19,494	8,734	1,830
Total Receipts	12,863,701	9,887,613	7,511,716	3,376,753	2,795,212
FINANCING REQUIREMENT -					
Funds required from South Australian Government Financing Authority	5,335,788	3,901,232	5,564,982	741,659	1,020,312
Fotal Receipts and Borrowings	18,199,489	13,788,845	13,076,698	4,118,412	3,815,524

# Summary of Payments on the Consolidated Account Quarters and 9 Months Ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

(Prepared on a Cash Basis)

		- Nine mont	Nine months ended -		- Quarter ended -	
	Budget	31 March	31 March	31 March	31 March	
	2021-22	2022	2021	2022	2021	
PAYMENTS -	\$ 000	\$ 000	\$ 000	\$ 000	\$ 000	
Administered Items for the Attorney-General's Department	65,845	49,120	50,423	8,736	10,668	
Attorney-General's Department	173,516	130,601	127,220	44,795	53,955	
Auditor-General's D epartment	18,616	13,817	13,956	4,243	4,553	
Commission on Excellence and Innovation in Health	5,930	4,581	4,592	1,602	1,383	
Courts Administration Authority	96,600	74,157	87,396	26,270	27,535	
Defence SA	11,180	9,178	11,880	3,180	5,187	
Department for Child Protection	648,072	568,298	487,501	181,135	147,089	
Department for Correctional Services	412,822	308,614	346,859	115,096	142,627	
Administered Items for the Department for Education	375,932	184,301	159,970	14,820	24,904	
Department for Education	3,287,483	2,512,580	2,475,293	842,295	877,630	
Department for Energy and Mining	54,776	54,776	134,125	4,011	27,914	
Administered Items for the Department for Environment and Water	30,979	19,768	26,894	650	4,857	
Department for Environment and Water	169,429	153,107	137,721	53,107	50,721	
Department for Health and Wellbeing	5,413,286	3,532,906	3,557,266	1,174,906	1,164,957	
Administered Items for the Department of Human Services	189,301	179,000	143,300	36,000	36,200	
Department of Human Services	940,430	914,670	880,226	240,670	148,327	
Administered Items for the Department for Infrastructure and Transport	4,045	3,450	5,067	1,031	1,018	
Department for Infrastructure and Transport	1,071,420	801,062	781,164	245,310	275,707	
Administered Items for the Department for Innovation and Skills	13,096	9,876	12,195	3,326	4,438	
Department for Innovation and Skills	402,391	330,970	358,397	99,676	51,249	
Administered Items for the Department of the Premier and Cabinet	9,185	7,352	8,130	1,833	3,483	
Department of the Premier and Cabinet	351,203	295,680	233,822	76,489	48,524	
Administered Items for the Department of Primary Industries and Regions	4,788	3,257	3,487	1,081	1,189	
Department of Primary Industries and Regions	124,636	92,246	135,015	34,546	69,313	
Department for Trade and Investment	43,949	32,000	26,532	9,000		
Administered Items for the Department of Treasury and Finance	2,666,366	2,245,865	1,760,042	488,110	296,400	
Department of Treasury and Finance	170,727	165,975	139,491	20,975	1,400	
Administered Items for the Electoral Commission of South Australia	502	-	404		162	
Electoral Commission of South Australia	29,437	24,327	4,900	8,370	1,800	
Green Industries SA		-	2,000			
House of Assembly	8,094	6,767	6,540	2,813	1,912	
Administered Items for the Joint Parliamentary Services	3,324	3,324	3,064		255	
Joint Parliamentary Services	13,013	11,163	10,553	5,008	3,500	
Legislative Council	5,803	4,825	4,580	2,007	1,335	
Premier—other items	5,562	5,562	5,426			
Administered Items for the South Australia Police	65	-	-	-		
South Australia Police	956,986	742,108	728,581	276,539	247,201	
South Australian Tourism Commission	66,288	51,305	62,486	13,305	13,486	
State Governor's Establishment	4,118	4,118	5,790	-	-	
Wellbeing SA	16,772	13,016	15,807	4,552	5,745	
Payments for which specific appropriation is authorised in various Acts	333,522	225,123	118,603	72,925	58,900	
TOTAL PAYMENTS	18,199,489	13,788,845	13,076,698	4,118,412	3,815,524	

Commentary to the Statement of the Amounts Credited to and Issued from the Consolidated Account for the Quarters Ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

# Receipts

Taxation

Gambling tax receipts in the March quarter 2022 were lower compared to the corresponding prior year period as receipts in the March quarter 2021 also included payments relating to previous quarters. Gambling tax receipts in the nine months ended March 2022 were higher compared to the corresponding prior year period largely reflecting growth in gaming machine taxation receipts and the impact of COVID-19 related gambling tax relief, which allowed licence holders to defer gaming machine taxation and casino duty payments.

Land tax receipts in the March quarter 2022 were higher compared to the corresponding prior year period, while land tax receipts in the nine months ended March 2022 were lower compared to the corresponding prior year period. These variances largely reflect differences in the timing of collections between years.

Payroll tax receipts in the March quarter 2022 and nine months ended March 2022 were higher compared to the corresponding prior year periods. This largely reflects the impacts of COVID-19 payroll tax relief measures in 2020-21, which lowered collections in that year, combined with growth in taxable payrolls.

Stamp duty receipts in the March quarter 2022 and nine months ended March 2022 were higher compared to the corresponding prior year periods. This was mainly due to higher conveyance duty on the transfer of properties, reflecting both an increase in the number of residential property transactions and the average value of properties transferred. In addition, insurance duty receipts and stamp duty receipts on the transfer of motor vehicles were higher over both periods.

#### Fees and charges

Fees and charges receipts in the March quarter 2022 and nine months ended March 2022 were higher than the corresponding prior year periods. This was mainly due to the timing of receipts for Land Services Regulatory Fees post the responsibility for these fees being transferred to the Attorney-General's Department from 1 October 2020. The payment to the Consolidated Account of all fees collected by the Attorney-General's Department in 2020-21 was conducted in June 2021. In 2021-22 the fees are being remitted to the Consolidated Account on a monthly basis.

#### Royalties

Royalty receipts in the March quarter 2022 were lower compared to the corresponding prior year period primarily due to the timing of collections. Royalty receipts in the nine months ended March 2022 were higher compared to the corresponding prior year period mainly due to improvements in commodity prices and increases in production.

#### Commonwealth - General Purpose Payments

Growth in general purpose grant receipts in 2021-22 compared to 2020-21 is not indicative of underlying movements in Goods and Services Tax (GST) revenue. This is because monthly grants are paid according to a payment schedule prepared by the Commonwealth Government rather than actual emerging monthly GST collections.

Based on the growth in the national GST pool and population estimates, and South Australia's relativity in 2021-22, the Commonwealth Government estimated in its 2022-23 Budget that South Australia's GST revenue grants will decline by 0.6 per cent in 2021-22.

#### Commonwealth - National Partnership Payments

National Partnership Payments received in the March quarter 2022 and nine months ended March 2022 were higher than the corresponding prior year periods. This was mainly due to reimbursements for Commonwealth HomeBuilder grants that are being administered by the state on behalf of the Commonwealth Government.

#### Other receipts

Other receipts in the March quarter 2022 and nine months ended March 2022 were higher compared to the corresponding prior year periods. This is largely due to the receipts from the Department for Environment and Water of the net proceeds from 2020-21 Crown Land sales to the Consolidated Account in 2021-22. This included the proceeds of the sale of land at Oakden to Renewal SA.

#### Payments

Payments were made pursuant to the *Appropriation Act 2021* and also in accordance with other Acts for which specific appropriation has been authorised. The timing of the payments is based on agreed agency drawdown schedules and may change from period to period based on specific agency requirements.

All appropriations were paid within approved limits established under the various Acts.

#### Note

The following points should be considered when reviewing the quarterly statement of Consolidated Account transactions:

- Unlike, the State Budget, which comprises transactions on an accrual basis, the information reflected in the quarterly statement is limited to cash transactions.
- The Consolidated Account does not capture all the transactions undertaken by the general government sector. In particular, it does
  not record receipts to, and payments from Agency deposit and special deposit accounts.
- The timing of receipts and payments can be volatile within a financial year. As a result, apparently large movements between quarters or years may only be due to changes in the timing of receipts and payments and therefore may not have consequences for the underlying budget position.

Dated: 4 July 2022

HON. STEPHEN MULLIGHAN MP Treasurer of South Australia

# RETAIL AND COMMERCIAL LEASES ACT 1995

# Exemption from the Application of Section 13

PURSUANT to section 77(2) of the Retail and Commercial Leases Act 1995 (SA) I, Nerissa Kilvert, Small Business Commissioner for the State of South Australia,

EXEMPT the Conditional Lease to be entered into between Yorke Peninsula Council and Voysey Holdings Pty Ltd in about August 2022 in relation to the use of that portion of the land comprised in Crown Record Volume 5757 Folio 276 delineated as the area outlined in purple on the plan in Annexure A to the Lease from section 13 of the said Act.

Dated: 8 July 2022

NERISSA KILVERT Small Business Commissioner

# ROADS (OPENING AND CLOSING) ACT 1991

SECTION 24

# NOTICE OF CONFIRMATION OF ROAD PROCESS ORDER

Road Closure-Unnamed Public Road, Willamulka, Thomas Plain

BY Road Process Order made on 16 May 2022, the Barunga West Council ordered that:

- 1. Portion of Public Road, Willamulka and Thomas Plain, situated adjoining Sections 74 and 75, Hundred of Ninnes, more particularly lettered 'A' and 'B' in Preliminary Plan 21/0026 be closed.
- Transfer the whole of land subject to closure to Jeffrey Clive Ayles in accordance with the Agreement for Transfer dated 2 16 May 2022 entered into between the Barunga West Council and Jeffrey Clive Ayles.
- 3. The following easements are to be granted over the land subject to closure:

Grant a free and unrestricted Right of Way over the land marked 'A' in favour of Allotment 102 in Deposited Plan 129904.

On 12 July 2022 that order was confirmed by the Minister for Planning conditionally upon the deposit by the Registrar-General of Deposited Plan 129904 being the authority for the new boundaries.

Pursuant to section 24 of the Roads (Opening and Closing) Act 1991, NOTICE of the order referred to above and its confirmation is hereby given.

Dated: 14 July 2022

DPTI: 2022/18211/01

B. J. SLAPE Surveyor-General

# LOCAL GOVERNMENT INSTRUMENTS

CITY OF ADELAIDE

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1999

SECTION 167-VALUATION OF LAND FOR THE PURPOSE OF RATING

SECTION 170-NOTICE OF DECLARATION OF RATES Adoption of Valuations and Declaration of Rates

NOTICE is hereby given that the Council of the Corporation of the City of Adelaide at its meeting held on 28 June 2022 and for the year ending 30 June 2023

- Adopted for rating purposes the valuations prepared by Valuers employed by the City of Adelaide of annual values applicable to land within the Council area totalling \$1,187,258,452 of which \$940,447,250 is for rateable land.
- 2. Declared differential general rates based upon the use of land as follows:
  - 0.1149 rate in the dollar for all rateable land with a residential land use; and 2.1
  - 0.2298 rate in the dollar for all rateable land with a vacant land use; and 2.2 2.3
  - 0.1408 rate in the dollar for all other rateable land in the Council area.
- 3. Declared a separate rate of 0.00223 rate in the dollar (the Regional Landscape Levy (formerly the NRM Levy)) on all rateable land in the Council area to recover the amount of \$2,096,521 payable to the Green Adelaide Board (formerly the Adelaide and Mount Lofty Ranges Natural Resource Management Board).
- Declared a separate rate of 0.03582 rate in the dollar (the Rundle Mall Differential Separate Rate) on all rateable land except that with a residential land use within the 'Rundle Mall Precinct' (as defined) to fund marketing and management of the precinct, including actions and initiatives to promote Rundle Mall as a destination for shopping and to enhance the vibrancy of the precinct.

Dated: 28 June 2022

C. MOCKLER Chief Executive Officer

#### CAMPBELLTOWN CITY COUNCIL

# Adoption of Valuations and Declaration of Rates

NOTICE is hereby given that at its meeting held on 5 July 2022, the Corporation of the City of Campbelltown for the financial year ending 30 June 2023 resolved:

#### Adoption of Valuation

To adopt for rating purposes the most recent valuations supplied by the Valuer-General of the capital value of land within the Council's area totalling \$16,644,971,912.

## Declaration of General Rate for the Year 2022/2023

To declare a general rate of 0.253979 cents for each dollar of the assessed capital value of rateable land within the Council's area.

Minimum Rate

To fix a minimum amount payable by way of general rates of \$1,037 in respect of rateable land within the Council's area.

# Regional Landscape Levy

To declare a separate rate of 0.007559 cents in the dollar on the capital value of all rateable land within the Council's area to reimburse the Council for amounts contributed to the Greening Adelaide Board. Dated: 5 July 2022

P. DI IULIO Chief Executive Officer

# CITY OF MARION

Adoption of Valuations and Declaration of Rates

NOTICE is hereby given that on 28 June 2022 the Council of the City of Marion, pursuant to the provisions of the Local Government Act 1999, for the year ending 30 June 2023,

# Adoption of Valuations

Adopted the capital valuations to apply in its area for rating purposes for the 2022-23 financial year as supplied by the Valuer-General 1. totalling \$28,260,874,460.

# Declaration of Rates

- 2. Declared differential general rates in the dollar based on capital value as follows: (a) 0.272447 cents in the dollar on rateable land of Category 1 – Residential, Category 7 – Primary Production and Category 9 – Other
  - (b) 0.585761 cents in the dollar on rateable land of Category 2 Commercial Shop, Category 3 Commercial Office, Category 4 Commercial Other.
  - (c) 0.558516 cents in the dollar on rateable land of Category 5 Industrial Light, Category 6 Industrial Other.
  - (d) 0.599383 cents in the dollar on rateable land of Category 8 Vacant Land.
- 3. Resolved that the minimum amount payable by way of general rates in respect of rateable land within the area for the year ending 30 June 2023 be \$1,091.00; and
- 4. Declared a Separate Rate of 0.007972 cents in the dollar on all rateable land within the Green Adelaide Board Area within the area.

The Council resolved that rates will be payable in four equal or approximately equal instalments, and that the due dates for those instalments will be 1 September 2022, 1 December 2022, 1 March 2023 and 1 June 2023. Dated: 14 July 2022

TONY HARRISON Chief Executive

# CITY OF MOUNT GAMBIER

Adoption of Valuations and Declaration of Rates

Notice is hereby given that the Council, in exercise of the powers contained in Chapters 8, 9 and 10 of the *Local Government Act 1999* and the *Landscape South Australia Act 2019* at a meeting held on 28 June 2022 and for the financial year ending 30 June 2023:

## 1. Adoption of Valuations

Adopted for rating purposes, the capital valuations of the Valuer-General's most recent valuations applicable to land within the area of the Council totalling \$4,826,351,100.

# 2. Declaration of Rates

- (i) Declared differential general rates in the dollar based on capital values as follows:
  - (a) 0.222490 cents in the dollar on rateable land of categories (a) Residential, (g) Primary Production and (i) Other land uses; and
    (b) 0.600723 cents in the dollar on rateable land of categories (b) Commercial—Shop, (c) Commercial—Office, (d) Commercial—Other, (e) Industry—Light, (f) Industry—Other and (h) Vacant Land land uses.
- (ii) Declared a fixed charge as a component of the general rates of \$532.60.
- (iii) Declared separate rates with a fixed charge amount that depends upon the use of the land to recover the contribution to the Regional Landscape Levy for the Limestone Coast Landscape Region as follows:
  - (a) \$81.20 per assessment on rateable land categories (a) Residential, (h) Vacant Land and (i) Other,
  - (b) \$122.00 per assessment on rateable land categories (b) Commercial—Shop, (c) Commercial—Office and (d) Commercial—Other,
  - (c) \$195.00 per assessment on rateable land categories (e) Industry-Light and (f) Industry-Other, and
  - (d) \$355.00 per assessment on rateable land category (g) Primary Production.

#### 3. Service Charge

Imposed a Waste Service Charge of \$206.85 on all land to which it provides or makes available the prescribed service.

Dated: 14 July 2022

SARAH PHILPOTT Chief Executive Officer

#### CITY OF ONKAPARINGA

Adoption of Valuations and Declaration of Rates for 2022-23

Notice is given that at its meeting held on 05 July 2022 the Council, for the financial year ending 30 June 2023:

# Adoption of Valuation

Adopted for rating purposes the Valuer-General's most recent valuation of capital values of land within the Council's area being \$41,499,279,460.

# **Declaration of General Rates**

Declared differential general rates based on two components:

- 1) one being based on the value of the land and varying according to land use, as follows:
  - (i) 0.196535 cents in the dollar on rateable land of category (a) (Residential) use
  - (ii) 0.376488 cents in the dollar on rateable land of categories (b),(c),(d), (Commercial Shop, Office and Other respectively) and (e) and (f) (Industrial Light and Other respectively) uses
  - (iii) 0.252730 cents in the dollar on rateable land of category (g) (Primary Production) use
  - (iv) 0.291257 cents in the dollar on rateable land of category (h) (Vacant Land) use and
  - (v) 0.241220 cents in the dollar on rateable land of category (i) (Other) use; and
- 2) the other being a fixed charge of \$730.00

# **Declaration of Separate Rates – Landscape Levies**

Declared separate rates as follows:

1) 0.008675 cents in the dollar on all rateable land in the Council area of the Hills and Fleurieu landscape management region

2) 0.007671 cents in the dollar on all rateable land in the Council area of the Green Adelaide landscape management region

# Service Charges

Imposed a community wastewater management annual service charge on all land (rateable and non-rateable) to which it provides or makes available the CWMS prescribed service of collection, disposal and treatment of waste based on the CWMS Property Units Code of:

- \$1,130.96 per unit on each occupied allotment; and
- \$1,130.96 per unit on each vacant allotment

Dated: 7 July 2022

JULIA GRANT Acting Chief Executive Officer

# CITY OF PLAYFORD

# Adoption of Valuations and Declaration of Rates

NOTICE is hereby given that the City of Playford at its meeting held on 28 June 2022, resolved as follows:

# **Adoption of Valuations**

Pursuant to Section 167(2)(a) of the Act, the Council adopts for rating purposes for the year ending 30 June 2023 the Valuer-General's Capital Valuation of land within the Council's area, being \$16,482,690,500, of which \$15,919,914,412 represents rateable land.

#### **Declaration of General Rate**

That having considered and taken into account the general principles of rating contained in Section 150 of the Act, and in accordance with Section 153(2) of the Act issues of consistency and comparability across council areas in the imposition of rates on various sectors of the business and wider community, the Council pursuant to Sections 152(1)(c), 153(1)(b) and 156(1)(a) of the Act and Regulation 14 of the *Local Government (General) Regulations 2013*, declares the following differential general rates for the year ending 30 June 2023, to apply to all rateable land within the Council area based on the following two components:

- 1. one being a fixed charge of \$1,042.95
- 2. the other being a differential general rate based on the capital value of the land varying accordingly to land use as follows:
  - (a) \$0.00202589 in the dollar of the capital value on rateable land of land uses category 1 (residential), category 7 (primary production), category 8 (vacant land) and category 9 (other) land use.
  - (b) \$0.01270411 in the dollar of the capital value on rateable land of land uses category 2 (commercial shop), category 3 (commercial office), category 4 (commercial other), category 5 (industry light) and category 6 (industry other) land use.

#### Maximum Increase for Principal Place of Residence

Pursuant to Section 153(3) of the Act, the Council has determined that it will not apply a maximum increase (rates cap) on general rates to be imposed on rateable land constituting the principal place of residence of a principal ratepayer.

#### Separate Rate (Regional Landscape Levy)

Pursuant to Section 69 of the *Landscape South Australia Act 2019* and Section 154 of the Act, the Council imposes a separate rate of \$0.00006947 in the dollar for the year ending 30 June 2023 on the capital value of all rateable land in the Council area and the Green Adelaide Region, so as to reimburse the Council for the amount contributed or to be contributed by the Council to the Green Adelaide Board of \$1,106,010.

Dated: 14 July 2022

SAM GREEN Chief Executive Officer

# CITY OF PORT ADELAIDE ENFIELD

#### Adoption of Valuations and Declaration of Rates for 2022/2023

NOTICE is hereby given that on 28 June 2022, the Council resolved for the financial year ending 30 June 2023:

1. To adopt the capital valuations that are to apply in its area for rating purposes totalling \$41,426,901,850.

- 2. To declare differential general rates on rateable land within its area as follows:
  - · Residential
  - A differential general rate of \$0.001950 in the dollar on the capital value of the land subject to the rate.
  - Commercial—Shop

A differential general rate of \$0.005794 in the dollar on the capital value of the land subject to the rate.

- Commercial—Office
- A differential general rate of \$0.005794 in the dollar on the capital value of the land subject to the rate.
- Commercial—Other

A differential general rate of \$0.005794 in the dollar on the capital value of the land subject to the rate.

Industry—Light

A differential general rate of \$0.005794 in the dollar on the capital value of the land subject to the rate.

• Industry—Other

A differential general rate of \$0.005794 in the dollar on the capital value of the land subject to the rate.

Primary Production

A differential general rate of \$0.005794 in the dollar on the capital value of the land subject to the rate. • Vacant Land

- A differential general rate of \$0.005794 in the dollar on the capital value of the land subject to the rate.
- Other

A differential general rate of \$0.005794 in the dollar on the capital value of the land subject to the rate. • Marina Berths

A differential general rate of \$0.005794 in the dollar on the capital value of the land subject to the rate.

- 3. Fixed a minimum amount payable by way of rates, pursuant to Section 158 of the *Local Government Act 1999*, in respect of the 2022-2023 financial year, in respect of rateable land within all parts of its area of \$930.
- 4. Declared a separate rate in respect of the Regional Landscape Levy for the 2022-2023 financial year of \$0.0000752 in the dollar on the capital value of rateable land in the area of Green Adelaide on 28 June 2022.

- 5. Declared a separate rate in respect to the 2022-2023 financial year of \$0.0017 in the dollar on the capital value of rateable land for each allotment contained within Deposited Plan No 42580 comprising the New Haven Village at North Haven.
- 6. Declared that all rates declared or payable in respect of or during the 2022-2023 financial year will fall due (unless otherwise agreed with the Principal Ratepayer) in four equal or approximately equal instalments payable on 1 September 2022, 1 December 2022, 1 March 2023 and 1 June 2023.

With reference to categories of uses being the categories of uses as differentiating factors referred to in the *Local Government (General) Regulations 2013* and *Local Government Act 1999* and in the case of marina berths, as permitted by Section 156(4a) of the *Local Government Act 1999*.

Dated: 14 July 2022

M. WITHERS Chief Executive Officer

# CITY OF SALISBURY

Adoption of Valuations and Declaration Of Rates

NOTICE is given that the City of Salisbury at a meeting held on Monday 27 June 2022,

- 1. Adopted the Valuer-General's valuation of capital values, being rateable of \$27,566,373,574, and non-rateable of \$1,400,906,186, totalling \$28,967,279,760 for the year ending 30 June 2023. The valuation shall, from 27 June 2022, become and be the valuation of the Council for rating purposes.
- 2. Declared differential general rates on property within its area for the financial year ending on the 30 June 2023, which rates shall vary by reference to the use of the rateable property in accordance with Regulation 14 of the *Local Government (General) Regulations 2013* as follows:-
  - (a) In respect of rateable land with a "Commercial Shop", "Commercial Office", "Commercial Other", "Industrial Light", "Industrial – Other", or "Marina Berth" land use, a Differential General Rate of 0.6034 cents in the dollar for the assessed capital value of such land.
  - (b) In respect of rateable land which has a "Vacant Land" land use, a Differential General Rate of **0.4658 cents** in the dollar for the assessed capital value of such land.
  - (c) In respect of all other rateable land in the area used for purposes other than as stated in paragraph (a) and (b) hereof, a Differential General Rate of **0.3583** cents in the dollar on the assessed capital value of such land.
- 3. Fixed a **Minimum amount of \$1,081** which shall be payable by way of rates on any one assessment within the municipality in respect of the year ending 30 June 2023.
- 4. Declared the following differential separate rates in accordance with Section 154 of the *Local Government Act 1999*, for the year ending 30 June 2023.

## Salisbury Business Association Separate Rate

A separate rate of **0.060029** cents in the dollar on the capital value of rateable land in that area with a local government code classified as Commercial Shop, Commercial Office, Commercial Other, Industrial Light and Industrial Other.

The purpose of this separate rate is to provide a fund to promote and enhance business viability, profitability trade and commerce in that part of the Council's area, which is the subject of the separate rate.

#### **Globe Derby Separate Rate**

A separate rate of **\$150.00** for each share of common land being 1 share for each allotment numbered Lots 1-23 & Lots 26-32 of DP9830, 1 share for each allotment numbered Lots 50-51 DP18972, 1 share for each allotment numbered Lots 33-34 & Lots 38-64 of DP9831, 1 share for allotment numbered lot 2 of FP14624, and 1 share in total for Lots 1 on FP14624 and 37 on DP9831 combined of portion of Section 3070 of Hundred Port Adelaide (laid out as Bolivar).

The purpose of this separate rate is to provide a fund to the Globe Derby Community Club for the purpose of maintaining the common land, being Lot 65 in Deposited Plan No. 9832.

#### Green Adelaide Board Regional Landscape Levy Separate Rate

A separate rate of 0.008178 cents in the dollar on the capital valuation of all rateable properties within the area of the City of Salisbury.

The purpose of this separate rate is to reimburse to Council the amount contributed to the Green Adelaide Board as required under Section 69 of the Landscape South Australia Act 2019 and Section 154 of the Local Government Act 1999.

Dated: 27 June 2022

J. HARRY Chief Executive Officer

# CITY OF SALISBURY

# LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1999

# By-law No. 1 of 2022-Permits and Penalties

To provide for a permit system, to fix maximum penalties in Council by-laws, to clarify the construction of such by-laws, and to repeal certain by-laws.

## Part 1 - Preliminary

# 1. Short Title

This by-law may be cited as the Permits and Penalties By-law 2022.

# 2. Commencement

This by-law will come into operation four months after the day on which it is published in the *Gazette* in accordance with Section 249(5) of the *Local Government Act 1999*.

# 3. Definitions

- 3.1 In any by-law of the Council, unless the contrary intention is clearly indicated:
  - 3.1.1 **authorised person** means a person appointed as an authorised person pursuant to Section 260 of the *Local Government Act 1999*;
  - 3.1.2 Council means the City of Salisbury;
  - 3.1.3 drive a vehicle means to be in control of the steering, movement or propulsion of the vehicle;
  - 3.1.4 **driver** of a vehicle means the person driving the vehicle;
  - 3.1.5 motor vehicle has the same meaning as in the *Road Traffic Act 1961*;
  - 3.1.6 **person** includes a natural person, a body corporate or incorporated association;
  - 3.1.7 road has the same meaning as in the *Local Government Act 1999*;
  - 3.1.8 **vehicle** has the same meaning as in the *Road Traffic Act 1961* and the *Australian Road Rules* and includes a motor vehicle.

# 3.2 In this by-law:

- 3.2.1 owner has the same meaning as in the *Road Traffic Act 1961*;
- 3.2.2 **prescribed offence** means an offence against a by-law of the Council relating to the driving, parking or standing of vehicles.

# 4. Construction

Every by-law of the Council shall be subject to any Act of Parliament and Regulations made thereunder.

# Part 2 – Permits

# 5. Council May Grant Permits

If any by-law of the Council states that a person needs a 'permit' or 'permission' to do a specified thing, then the following provisions apply:

- 5.1 the permit must be in writing;
- 5.2 a person may apply for permission by:
  - 5.2.1 making application for permission to the Council or its duly authorised agent;
  - 5.2.2 making application by way of a website established by the Council for the purpose of issuing a permit of a particular kind;
  - 5.2.3 obtaining a permit from a permit vending-machine installed and maintained by the Council that has been designated by the Council for the purposes of issuing a permit of a particular kind;
- 5.3 the Council may:
  - 5.3.1 provide that the permit applies for a particular term;
  - 5.3.2 attach conditions to the permit the Council considers appropriate;
  - 5.3.3 change or revoke a condition, by notice in writing; or
  - 5.3.4 add new conditions, by notice in writing;
- 5.4 a person who holds a permit must comply with every condition attached to it. Failure to do so constitutes a breach of this by-law;
- 5.5 the Council may revoke a permit, by notice in writing, if:
  - 5.5.1 the holder of the permit fails to comply with a condition attached to it, or
  - 5.5.2 the permit is of a continuing nature, and the Council has reasonable grounds for revoking it,
- 5.6 the Council may, by resolution, fix, vary or revoke fees or charges for the granting of a permit to do a specified thing;
- 5.7 a person who applies for permission by way of subparagraph 5.2.2 or 5.2.3 is taken to have been granted permission when the following steps have been completed:
  - 5.7.1 the person pays the permit fee (if any) by (as the case may be):
    - 5.7.1.1 inserting sufficient coins or notes into the permit vending-machine;
    - 5.7.1.2 credit or debit card; or

5.7.1.3 such other method of payment that may be approved by the Council by resolution;

the person receives a notice identifying itself as a permit from the Council to undertake the activity specified in the permit.

#### Part 3 - Enforcement

5.7.2

#### 6. Penalties

- 6.1 A person who contravenes, or fails to comply with any by-law of the Council is guilty of an offence and is liable to a maximum penalty, being the maximum penalty referred to in the *Local Government Act 1999*, which may be fixed for offences against a by-law.
- 6.2 A person who is convicted of an offence against any by-law of the Council in respect of a continuing act or omission is liable, in addition to the penalty otherwise applicable, to a further penalty, being the maximum penalty referred to in the *Local Government Act 1999* which may be fixed for offences of a continuing nature against a by-law.

# 7. Liability of Vehicles Owners and Expiation of Certain Offences

- 7.1 Without derogating from the liability of any other person, but subject to this paragraph, if a vehicle is involved in a prescribed offence, the owner of the vehicle is guilty of an offence and liable to the same penalty as is prescribed for the principal offence and the expiation fee that is fixed for the principal offence applies in relation to an offence against this paragraph.
- 7.2 The owner and driver of a vehicle are not both liable through the operation of this paragraph to be convicted of an offence arising out of the same circumstances, and consequently conviction of the owner exonerates the driver and conversely conviction of the driver exonerates the owner.
- 7.3 An explation notice or explation reminder notice given under the *Explation of Offences Act 1996* to the owner of a vehicle for an alleged prescribed offence involving the vehicle must be accompanied by a notice inviting the owner, if they were not the driver at the time of the alleged prescribed offence, to provide the Council or officer specified in the notice, within the period specified in the notice, with a statutory declaration:
  - 7.3.1 setting out the name and address of the driver; or
  - 7.3.2 if they had transferred ownership of the vehicle to another prior to the time of the alleged offence and has complied with the *Motor Vehicles Act 1959* in respect of the transfer - setting out details of the transfer (including the name and address of the transferee).
- 7.4 Before proceedings are commenced against the owner of a vehicle for an offence against this section involving the vehicle, the Informant must send the owner a notice:
  - 7.4.1 setting out particulars of the alleged prescribed offence; and
  - 7.4.2 inviting the owner, if they were not the driver at the time of the alleged prescribed offence, to provide the Informant, within 21 days of the date of the notice, with a statutory declaration setting out the matters referred to in subparagraph 7.3.
- 7.5 Subparagraph 7.4 does not apply to:
  - 7.5.1 proceedings commenced where an owner has elected under the *Expicition of Offences Act 1996* to be prosecuted for the offence; or
  - 7.5.2 proceedings commenced against an owner of a vehicle who has been named in a statutory declaration under this section as the driver of the vehicle.
- 7.6 Subject to subparagraph 7.7, in proceedings against the owner of a vehicle for an offence against this paragraph, it is a defence to prove:
  - 7.6.1 that, in consequence of some unlawful act, the vehicle was not in the possession or control of the owner at the time of the alleged prescribed offence; or
  - 7.6.2 that the owner provided the Informant with a statutory declaration in accordance with an invitation under this paragraph.
- 7.7 The defence in paragraph 7.6.2 does not apply if it is proved that the owner made the declaration knowing it to be false in a material particular.
- 7.8 If:
  - 7.8.1 an expitation notice is given to a person named as the alleged driver in a statutory declaration under this paragraph; or
  - 7.8.2 proceedings are commenced against a person named as the alleged driver in such a statutory declaration,

the notice or summons, as the case may be, must be accompanied by a notice setting out particulars of the statutory declaration that named the person as the alleged driver.

7.9 The particulars of the statutory declaration provided to the person named as the alleged driver must not include the address of the person who provided the statutory declaration.

# 8. Evidence

In proceedings for a prescribed offence, an allegation in an Information that:

- 8.1 a specified place was a road or local government land; or
- 8.2 a specified vehicle was driven, parked or left standing in a specified place; or
- 8.3 a specified vehicle was parked or left standing for the purposes of soliciting business from a person or offering or exposing goods for sale; or
- 8.4 a specified place was not formed or otherwise set aside by the Council for the purposes of the driving, parking or standing of vehicles; or
- 8.5 a specified person was an authorised person; or
- 8.6 a specified provision was a condition of a specified permit granted under paragraph 5 of this by-law; or
- 8.7 a specified person was the owner or driver of a specified vehicle; or
- 8.8 a person named in a statutory declaration under paragraph 7 of this by-law for the prescribed offence to which the declaration relates was the driver of the vehicle at the time at which the alleged offence was committed; or
- an owner or driver of a vehicle for a prescribed offence was given notice under paragraph 7 of this by-law on a
- specified day,

is proof of the matters so alleged in the absence of proof to the contrary.

# Part 4 – Miscellaneous

# 9. Revocation

Council's *Permits and Penalties By-law 2015*, published in the *Gazette* on 3 September 2015, is revoked on the day on which this by-law comes into operation.

The foregoing by-law was duly made and passed at a meeting of the Council of the City of Salisbury held on the  $27^{\text{th}}$  day of June 2022 by an absolute majority of the members for the time being constituting the Council, there being at least two thirds of the members present.

Mr John Harry Chief Executive Officer

# CITY OF SALISBURY

# LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1999

# By-law No. 2 of 2022–Moveable Signs

To set standards for moveable signs on roads, to provide conditions for and the placement of such signs, to protect public safety and to protect or enhance the amenity of the area of the Council.

# Part 1 – Preliminary

# 1. Short Title

2.

This by-law may be cited as the Moveable Signs By-law 2022.

# Commencement

This by-law will come into operation four months after the day on which it is published in the *Gazette* in accordance with Section 249(5) of the *Local Government Act 1999*.

# 3. Definitions

In this by-law:

- 3.1 **banner** means a moveable sign constituted of a strip of cloth, plastic or other material hung or attached to a pole, fence or other structure;
- 3.2 footpath means:
  - 3.2.1 a footway, lane or other place made or constructed for the use of pedestrians; or
  - 3.2.2 that part of road between the property boundary of the road and the edge of the carriageway on the same side as that boundary;
- 3.3 moveable sign has the same meaning as the *Local Government Act 1999*;
- 3.4 road has the same meaning as in the Local Government Act 1999,
- 3.5 road related area has the same meaning as in the *Road Traffic Act 1961*.

#### Part 2 - Provisions Applicable to Moveable Signs

#### 4. Design and Construction

A moveable sign displayed on a road must:

- 4.1 be of a kind known as an 'A' frame or sandwich board sign, an 'T' sign, or a flat sign or, with the permission of the Council, a sign of some other kind;
- 4.2 be designed, constructed and maintained in good quality and condition;
- 4.3 be constructed so as to be stable when in position and to be able to keep its position in adverse weather conditions;
- 4.4 have no sharp or jagged edges or corners;
- 4.5 not be unsightly or offensive in appearance or content;
- 4.6 be constructed of timber, metal, plastic or plastic coated cardboard, or a mixture of such materials;
- 4.7 not contain flashing or moving parts;
- 4.8 not have balloons, flags, streamers or other things attached to it;
- 4.9 be no more than 900mm in height, 600mm in width or 600mm in depth;
- 4.10 in the case of an 'A' frame or sandwich board sign:
  - 4.10.1 be hinged or joined at the top;
  - 4.10.2 be of such construction that its sides can be and are securely fixed or locked in position when erected; and
  - 4.10.3 not have a base area in excess of 0.6 square metres;
- 4.11 in the case of a 'T' sign, not contain struts or members than run between the display area of the sign and the base of the sign.

# 5. Placement

A moveable sign displayed on a road must:

- 5.1 not be placed anywhere except on the footpath;
- 5.2 not be placed on a sealed footpath, unless the sealed part is wide enough to contain the sign and still leave a clear thoroughfare at least 1.2 metres wide;
- 5.3 be placed at least 500mm from the kerb (or if there is no kerb, from the edge of the carriageway of a road or the shoulder of a road, whichever is the greater);
- 5.4 not be placed on a landscaped area, other than on landscaping that comprises only lawn;
- 5.5 not be placed on a designated parking area or within 1 metre of an entrance to any premises; and

- 5.6 not be fixed, tied or chained to, leaned against or placed closer than 1 metre to any other structure, object or plant (including another moveable sign);
- 5.7 not be placed in a position that puts the safety of any person at risk;
- 5.8 not be placed on a median strip, roundabout, traffic island or on a carriageway;
- 5.9 not be within 10 metres of an intersection of a road.

#### 6. Restrictions

A moveable sign displayed on a road must:

- 6.1 only contain material which advertises a business being conducted on commercial premises adjacent to the sign, or the goods and services available from that business;
- 6.2 be limited to one per business premises;
- 6.3 not be displayed unless the business to which it relates is open to the public;
- 6.4 be securely fixed in position such that it cannot be blown over or swept away;
- 6.5 not be displayed during the hours of darkness unless it is clearly visible.

#### 7. Appearance

A moveable sign displayed on a road must:

- 7.1 be painted or otherwise detailed in a competent and professional manner;
- 7.2 be legible and simply worded to convey a precise message;
- 7.3 be of such design and contain such colours that are compatible with the architectural design of the premises adjacent to the sign and are compatible with the townscape and overall amenity of the locality in which the sign is situated;
- 7.4 contain a combination of colours and typographical styles that blend in with and reinforce the heritage qualities of the locality and the buildings in which the sign is situated.

# 8. Banners

A banner must:

- 8.1 only be displayed on a road, footpath or road related area;
- 8.2 be securely fixed to a pole, fence or other structure so that it does not hang loose or flap;
- 8.3 not be attached to any building, structure, fence, vegetation or other item owned by the Council on a road, or other improvement to a road owned by the Council;
- 8.4 not be displayed more than one month before and two days after the event it advertises;
- 8.5 not be displayed for a continuous period of more than one month and two days in any twelve month period;
- 8.6 not exceed 3m<sup>2</sup> in size.

#### Part 3 - Enforcement

#### 9. Removal of Unauthorised Moveable Signs

- 9.1 If:
  - 9.1.1 a moveable sign has been placed on any road or footpath in contravention of this by-law or of Section 226 of the *Local Government Act 1999*, an authorised person may order the owner of the sign to remove the moveable sign from the road or footpath;
  - 9.1.2 the authorised person cannot find the owner, or the owner fails to comply immediately with the order, the authorised person may remove and dispose of the sign;
  - 9.1.3 a moveable sign is removed under subparagraph 9.1.2 of this by-law and is not claimed within 30 days of such removal the authorised person may sell, destroy or otherwise dispose of the moveable sign as the authorised person thinks fit.
- 9.2 Any person who displays an unauthorised moveable sign or who is the owner of an unauthorised moveable sign which has been removed under subparagraph 9.1 of this by-law must pay the Council any reasonable costs incurred in removing, storing or attempting to dispose of the moveable sign before being entitled to recover the moveable sign.

#### 10. Removal of Authorised Moveable Signs

A moveable sign must be removed or relocated by the person who placed the moveable sign on a road or footpath or the owner of the sign, at the request of an authorised person if:

- 10.1 in the opinion of the authorised person, and notwithstanding compliance with this by-law, there is any hazard or obstruction or there is likely to be a hazard or obstruction arising out of the location of the moveable sign; or
- 10.2 so required by the authorised person for the purpose of special events, parades, road or footpath works or any other circumstances which, in the opinion of the authorised person, requires relocation or removal of the moveable sign.

#### Part 4 – Miscellaneous

#### 11. Specified Exemptions

- 11.1 This by-law does not apply to a moveable sign which:
  - 11.1.1 is a moveable sign that is placed on a public road pursuant to an authorisation under the *Local Government Act 1999* or another Act;
  - 11.1.2 directs people to the open inspection of any land or building that is available for purchase or lease;
  - 11.1.3 directs people to a garage sale that is being held on residential premises provided that:11.1.3.1 no more than four moveable signs per residential premises are displayed at any one
    - time in relation to a garage sale taking place at that premises;
    - 11.1.3.2 the moveable sign displays the address of the premises; and
    - 11.1.3.3 the moveable sign is displayed on the day the garage sale is taking place;
    - 11.1.3.4 the sign is removed on the same day as the garage sale;
  - 11.1.4 directs people to a charitable function;
  - 11.1.5 is related to a Commonwealth election that occurs during the period commencing at 5:00pm on the day before the issue of the writ or writs for the election and ending at the close of polls on polling day;
  - 11.1.6 is related to a State election and is otherwise authorised to be exhibited under the Section 226 of *Local Government Act 1999* or the *Electoral Act 1985*;
  - 11.1.7 is related to an election held under the *Local Government Act 1999* or the *Local Government* (*Elections*) Act 1999 and is otherwise authorised to be exhibited under Section 226 of *Local Government Act 1999*;
  - 11.1.8 is related to a referendum and is displayed during the course and for the purpose of that referendum;
  - 11.1.9 is displayed with permission of the Council and in accordance with any conditions attached to that permission; or
  - 11.1.10 is a sign of a class prescribed in regulations.
- 11.2 Clauses 6.2 and 6.3 of this by-law do not apply to a flat sign containing only the banner or headlines of a newspaper or magazine.

Clauses 4, 6.2, 6.3 and 7 of this by-law do not apply to a directional sign to an event run by a charitable body.

# 11.3 C 12. **Revocation**

Council's Moveable Signs By-law 2015, published in the Gazette on 3 September 2015, is revoked on the day on which this by-law comes into operation.

The foregoing by-law was duly made and passed at a meeting of the Council of the City of Salisbury on the  $27^{\text{th}}$  day of June 2022 by an absolute majority of the members for the time being constituting the Council, there being at least two thirds of the members present.

Mr John Harry Chief Executive Officer

# CITY OF SALISBURY

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1999 By-law No. 3 of 2022—Roads

29 1411 1101

For the management of public roads.

# Part 1 – Preliminary

1. Short Title

2.

This by-law may be cited as the Roads By-law 2022.

# Commencement

This by-law will come into operation four months after the day on which it is published in the *Gazette* in accordance with Section 249(5) of the *Local Government Act 1999*.

# 3. Definitions

In this by-law, unless the contrary intention appears:

- 3.1 **animal** includes birds and poultry but does not include a dog;
- 3.2 **camp** includes setting up a camp, or causing a tent, caravan or motorhome to remain on the road for the purpose of staying overnight, whether or not any person is in attendance or sleeps on the road;
- 3.3 dog has the same meaning as in the Dog and Cat Management Act 1995;
- 3.4 electoral matter has the same meaning as in the *Electoral Act 1985* provided that such electoral matter is not capable of causing physical damage or injury to any person within its immediate vicinity;
- 3.5 **emergency vehicle** means a vehicle driven by a person who is an emergency worker;
- 3.6 **emergency worker** has the same meaning as in the *Road Traffic (Road Rules Ancillary and Miscellaneous Provisions) Regulations 2014*;
- 3.7 road has the same meaning as in the Local Government Act 1999;
- 3.8 wheeled recreational device has the same meaning as in the *Road Traffic Act 1961* but also includes any vehicle that is an electric personal transporter for the purposes of that Act.

#### Part 2 - Management of Roads

# 4. Activities Requiring Permission

A person must not on any road, without the permission of the Council:

#### 4.1 Advertising

- 4.1.1 display any sign for the purpose of commercial advertising, other than a moveable sign which is displayed on a public road in accordance with the Council's *Moveable Signs By-law 2022*;
- 4.1.2 place or maintain any goods on the road or park or stand a vehicle on the road for the purposes of:
  - 4.1.2.1 soliciting any business from any person; or
  - 4.1.2.2 offering or exposing goods or services for sale,

provided that this sub-paragraph 4.1.2 shall not apply to a person who is simply travelling along a road:

#### 4.2 Amplification

use an amplifier or other device whether mechanical or electrical for the purpose of amplifying sound or broadcasting announcements or advertisements;

#### 4.3 Animals

- 4.3.1 cause or allow any animal, to stray onto, graze, wander on or be left unattended on any road except where the Council has set aside a track or other area for use by or in connection with an animal of that kind and, then only if under the effective control of a person;
- 4.3.2 lead, drive or exercise any animal in such a manner as to endanger the safety of any person;

#### 4.4 Bicycles

chain, lock or affix a bicycle to any pole, fence or other structure on a Road where the bicycle may cause an obstruction or damage the structure, other than on a structure specifically designed and set aside by the Council for that purpose;

# 4.5 Bridge Jumping

jump or dive from any bridge or other structure;

	4.6	Campin	0
		4.6.1	erect any tent or other structure of calico, canvas, plastic or similar material as a place of habitation;
		4.6.2	camp or sleep overnight,
		4.6.3	camp or sleep overnight in a motorhome, except where a sign or signs erected by the Council indicate that camping on the road in such a vehicle is permitted;
	4.7	Canvass	ing
		convey a	ny advertising, religious or other message to any bystander, passerby or other person;
	4.8	Defacing	g Property
		deface, p or proper	aint, spray, write, cut names, letters or make marks on any tree, rock, gate, fence, building, sign, bridge ty of the Council;
	4.9	Distribu	tion of Bills
		place any the vehic	y handbill, book, notice, leaflet or other printed matter on a vehicle without the consent of the owner of le;
	4.10	Donation	18
		ask for o	r receive or indicate that they desire a donation of money or any other thing;
	4.11	Obstruc	tions
			tall or place or cause to be erected, installed or placed any structure, object or material of any kind so as ct a road, footway, water-channel, or watercourse in a road;
	4.12	Preachir	Ig
			anvass, harangue or otherwise solicit for religious purposes except on any road or part thereof where the nas, by resolution, determined this restriction shall not apply;
	4.13	Public <b>E</b>	xhibitions and Displays
		4.13.1	sing, busk or play a musical instrument for the apparent purpose of either entertaining others or receiving money;
		4.13.2	conduct or hold any concert, festival, show, public gathering, street party, circus, performance or any other similar activity;
		4.13.3	erect a stage or structure for the purpose of conducting or holding a concert, festival, show, circus, performance or a similar activity;
		4.13.4	cause any public exhibitions or displays;
	4.14	Solicitin	g
		ask for o	r receive or indicate a desire for a donation of money or any other thing;
	4.15	Touting	for Business
		tout for t	usiness;
	4.16	Use of C	ouncil Rubbish Bins
		deposit a	ny commercial waste or other rubbish emanating from commercial premises in any Council rubbish bin
	4.17 Wheeled Recreational Devices		Recreational Devices
		use a wh	eeled recreational device on a footpath;
	4.18		g on Vehicles
			the work of repairing, washing, painting, panel beating or other work of any nature on or to any vehicle, r running repairs in the case of breakdown.
Part	3 – Miscel	laneous	
5.	Directi	ons	
	A perso	on must con	aply with any reasonable direction or request from an authorised person relating to:
	5.1	that pers	on's use of the road;

- 5.2 that person's conduct and behaviour on the road;
- 5.3 that person's safety on the road;
- 5.4 the safety and enjoyment of the road by other persons.

#### 6. **Removal of Animals**

If any animal is found on a road in breach of this by-law:

- any person in charge of the animal shall forthwith remove it from that land on the request of an authorised 6.1 person; and
- 6.2 any authorised person may remove any animal from the road if the person fails to comply with the request, or if no person is in charge of the animal.

#### 7. Exemptions

- 7.1The restrictions in this by-law do not apply to any Police Officer, Council Officer or Council employee acting in the course and within the scope of that person's normal duties, or to a contractor while performing work for the Council and while acting under the supervision of a Council Officer, or to an emergency worker when driving an emergency vehicle.
- 7.2 The restrictions in paragraph 4.2, 4.7, 4.10 and 4.13.4 of this by-law do not apply to:

- 7.2.1 electoral matters authorised by a candidate and which relate to a Commonwealth or State election that occurs during the period commencing at 5:00pm on the day before the issue of the writ or writs for the election and ending at the close of polls on polling day; or
- 7.2.2 electoral matters authorised by a candidate and which relate to an election under the *Local Government Act 1999* or the *Local Government (Elections) Act 1999* that occurs during the period commencing four weeks immediately before the date that has been set (either by or under either Act) for polling day and ending at the close of voting on polling day; or
- 7.2.3 matters which relate to, and occur during the course of and for the purpose of a referendum.

# 8. Revocation

Council's Roads By-law 2015, published in the Gazette on 3 September 2015, is revoked on the day on which this by-law comes into operation.

The foregoing by-law was duly made and passed at a meeting of the Council of the City of Salisbury held on the  $27^{\text{th}}$  day of June 2022 by an absolute majority of the members for the time being constituting the Council, there being at least two thirds of the members present.

Mr John Harry Chief Executive Officer

# CITY OF SALISBURY

# LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1999

#### By-law No. 4 of 2022-Local Government Land

For the management and regulation of the use of and access to all land vested in or under the control of the Council including the prohibition and regulation of particular activities on local government land.

#### Part 1 - Preliminary

# 1. Short Title

This by-law may be cited as the Local Government Land By-law 2022.

# 2. Commencement

This by-law will come into operation four months after the day on which it is published in the *Gazette* in accordance with Section 249(5) of the *Local Government Act 1999*.

#### 3. Definitions

#### In this by-law:

- 3.1 **animal** includes birds, insects and marine creatures;
- 3.2 **boat** includes a pontoon, raft, canoe, personal watercraft or any other similar device;
- 3.3 **camp** includes setting up a camp, or cause a tent, caravan or motorhome to remain on the land for the purpose of staying overnight, whether or not any person is in attendance or sleeps on the land;
- 3.4 **children's playground** means any enclosed area in which there is equipment, apparatus or other installed devices for the purpose of children's play (or within 5 metres of such devices if there is no enclosed area);
- 3.5 **community garden** means an area of land set aside by the Council for the purposes of being gardened collectively by a group of people;
- 3.6 **domestic animal** includes any duck, reptile or fish;
- 3.7 e-cigarette means:
  - 3.7.1 a device that is designed to generate or release an aerosol or vapour for inhalation by its user in a manner similar to the inhalation of smoke from an ignited tobacco product, or
  - 3.7.2 a device of a kind resolved by the Council and notified by notice in the *Gazette* to be an e-cigarette;
- 3.8 **electoral matter** has the same meaning as in the *Electoral Act 1985* provided that such electoral matter is not capable of causing physical damage or injury to any person within its immediate vicinity;
- 3.9 emergency vehicle means a vehicle driven by a person who is an emergency worker;
- 3.10 **emergency worker** has the same meaning as in the *Road Traffic (Road Rules Ancillary and Miscellaneous Provisions) Regulations 2014*;
- 3.11 **foreshore** means the land extending from the low water mark on the seashore to the nearest road or section boundary, or to a distance of 50 metres from high water mark (whichever is the lesser distance);
- 3.12 funeral ceremony means a ceremony only (ie a memorial service) and does not include a burial;
- 3.13 **inflatable castle** includes a bouncy castle, jumping castle and any other inflatable structure used for recreational purposes;
- 3.14 liquor has the same meaning as defined in the *Liquor Licensing Act 1997*;
- 3.15 **local government land** has the same meaning as in the *Local Government Act 1999*, but does not include any road;
- 3.16 model aircraft includes a drone;
- 3.17 **open container** means a container which:
  - 3.17.1 after the contents thereof have been sealed at the time of manufacture and:
    - 3.17.1.1 being a bottle, has had its cap, cork or top removed (whether or not it has since been replaced);
    - 3.17.1.2 being a can, it has been opened or punctured;
    - 3.17.1.3 being a cask, has had its tap placed in a position to allow it to be used;
    - 3.17.1.4 being any form of container, it has been opened, broken, punctured or manipulated in such a way as to allow access to the contents thereof; or
  - 3.17.2 is a flask, glass or mug or other container used for drinking purposes;

#### 3.18 personal watercraft means a device that:

- 3.18.1 is propelled by a motor, and
- 3.18.2 has a fully enclosed hull; and
- 3.18.3 is designed not to retain water if capsized; and
- 3.18.4 is designed to be operated by a person who sits astride, stands, or kneels on the device,
- and includes the device commonly referred to as a jet ski;
- 3.19 smoke means:
  - 3.19.1 in relation to a tobacco product, smoke, hold, or otherwise have control over, an ignited tobacco product; or

- 3.19.2 in relation to an e-cigarette, to inhale from, hold or otherwise have control over, an e-cigarette that is in use;
- 3.20 traffic control device has the same meaning as in the *Road Traffic Act 1961*;
- 3.21 **variable message sign** includes a permanent, portable or vehicle mounted electronic sign (except when the sign is used as a traffic control device);
- 3.22 wheeled recreational device has the same meaning as in the *Road Traffic Act 1961* but also includes any vehicle that is an electric personal transporter for the purposes of that Act;
- 3.23 **waters** means any body of water including a pond, lake, river, creek or wetlands under the care, control and management of Council, but excludes the ocean.

# Part 2 - Management of Local Government Land

#### 4. Activities Requiring Permission

A person must not on any local government land, without the permission of Council:

- 4.1 Advertising & Signage
  - 4.1.1 display any sign for the purpose of commercial advertising, other than a moveable sign that is displayed in accordance with the *Moveable Signs By-law 2022*;
  - 4.1.2 erect, install, place or display a variable message sign;
  - 4.1.3 place or maintain any goods on the land or park or stand a vehicle on the land for the purposes of:
    - 4.1.3.1 soliciting any business from any person; or
      - 4.1.3.2 offering or exposing goods or services for sale,
    - provided that this sub-paragraph 4.1.3 shall not apply to a person who is simply travelling through the land;

#### 4.2 Aircraft

subject to the Civil Aviation Act 1988 (Cth), land or take off any aircraft on or from the land;

# 4.3 Alteration to Local Government Land

make an alteration to the land, including:

- 4.3.1 altering the construction or arrangement of the land to permit or facilitate access from an adjacent property; or
- 4.3.2 erecting or installing a structure (including pipes, wires, cables, pavers, fixtures, fittings and other objects) in, on, across, under or over the land; or
- 4.3.3 changing or interfering with the construction, arrangement or materials of the land; or
- 4.3.4 changing, interfering with or removing a structure (including pipes, wires, cables, fixtures, fittings or other objects) associated with the land; or
- 4.3.5 planting a tree or other vegetation on the land, interfering with the vegetation on the land or removing vegetation from the land;

# 4.4 Amplification

use an amplifier or other device whether mechanical or electrical for the purpose of amplifying sound to the public;

#### 4.5 Animals on local government land

- 4.5.1 ride, lead or drive any horse, cattle or sheep, except on any track or car park on local government land that the Council has set aside (through the erection of signage) for the use by, or in connection with that animal;
- 4.5.2 cause or allow any animal under their control to swim or bathe in any waters or the ocean to the inconvenience, annoyance or danger of any other person bathing or swimming;
- 4.5.3 allow an animal in that persons control, charge or ownership to damage a flower bed, garden plot, tree, lawn or other Council property;
- 4.5.4 release or leave any domestic animal;
- 4.5.5 lead, herd or exercise an animal in such a manner as to cause a nuisance or endanger the safety of a person;

# 4.6 Annoyance

do anything likely to offend or unreasonably interfere with any other person:

- 4.6.1 using that land; or
- 4.6.2 occupying nearby premises,
- by making a noise or creating a disturbance;

#### 4.7 Attachments

attach, hang or fix any item to any tree, shrub, plant, tree guard, tree stake, notice board, seat, fence, post or other item or structure which is the property of the Council;

# 4.8 Bees

place, or allow to remain, any bee hive;

4.9	Boats
	100000

- 4.9.1 hire or offer for hire a boat, raft, pontoon or other watercraft;
- 4.9.2 launch or retrieve a boat, raft, pontoon or other watercraft to or from any waters;
- 4.9.3 propel, float or otherwise use any boat, raft, pontoon or other watercraft on any waters;

# 4.10 Bridge Jumping

jump from or dive from a bridge;

# 4.11 Buildings & Structures

- 4.11.1 erect or install a building;
- 4.11.2 use a building or structure other than for its intended purpose;

#### 4.12 Camping

- 4.12.1 erect any tent or other structure of calico, canvas, plastic or similar material as a place of habitation;
- 4.12.2 camp or sleep overnight,

except where a sign or signs erected by the Council indicate that camping on the land is permitted or where the person is in a caravan park (the proprietor of which has been given permission to operate the caravan park on that land);

## 4.13 Canvassing

convey any advertising, religious or other message to any bystander, passer-by or other person;

# 4.14 Cemeteries

- Comprising a cemetery:
- 4.14.1 bury or inter any human or animal remains;
- 4.14.2 erect any memorial;

# 4.15 Closed lands

enter or remain on any part of the land:

- 4.15.1 at any time during which the Council has declared that it shall be closed to the public, and which is indicated by a sign to that effect, or
- 4.15.2 where the land is enclosed with fences and/or walls and gates, at any time when the gates have been closed and locked; or
- 4.15.3 where admission charges are payable, without paying those charges;
- 4.15.4 constituting a revegetation area, where a sign or signs indicate that the land is closed for that purpose;

# 4.16 Defacing of property

deface, paint, spray, write, cut names, letters or make marks on any tree, rock, gate, fence, building, sign, bridge or property of the Council;

# 4.17 Distribution

distribute anything to any bystander, passer-by or other person;

# 4.18 Donations

ask for or receive or indicate that they desire a donation of money or any other thing;

#### 4.19 Entertainment and busking

- 4.19.1 sing, busk or play a recording or use a musical instrument for the apparent purpose of either entertaining others or receiving money;
- 4.19.2 conduct or hold a concert, festival, show, public gathering, circus, meeting, performance or other similar activity;

# 4.20 Equipment

use an item of equipment, facilities or property belonging to the Council if that person is of or over the age indicated by a sign or notice as the age limit for using such equipment, facility or property;

# 4.21 Fires

subject to the Fire and Emergency Services Act 2005, light any fire except:

- 4.21.1 in a place provided by the Council for that purpose;
- 4.21.2 in a portable barbeque, as long as the barbeque is used in an area that is clear of flammable material for a distance of at least four metres;

# 4.22 Fireworks

Use, discharge or explode any fireworks;

#### 4.23 Fishing

- 4.23.1 fish in any waters on local government land to which the Council has resolved this subparagraph shall apply, or
- 4.23.2 fish from any bridge or other structure on local government land to which the Council has resolved this subparagraph shall apply;

4.24	Flora, fauna and other living things					
		the Native Vegetation Act 1991 and the National Parks and Wildlife Act 1972 and/or the Crown Land ont Act 2009 (to the extent applicable):				
	4.24.1	except in a community garden, damage, pick, or interfere with any plant, fungi or lichen thereon;				
	4.24.2	tease, remove or cause harm to any animal or bird or the eggs or young of any animal or bird or aquatic creature; or				
	4.24.3	use, possess or have control of any device for the purpose of killing or capturing any animal or bird;				
4.25	Foreshore					
	comprising	; foreshore:				
	4.25.1	drive or propel a vehicle on the foreshore except on an area or road that is constructed or set aside by the Council for that purpose;				
	4.25.2	launch or retrieve a boat from the foreshore without using a boat ramp; or				
	4.25.3	allow a vehicle to remain stationary on a boat ramp that is necessary to launch or retrieve a boat;				
4.26	Funerals a	and scattering ashes				
		participate in a funeral ceremony, or scatter ashes on land to which the Council has resolved this ph will apply;				
4.27	Golf					
	play or pra	ctise the game of golf;				
4.28	Lighting					
	4.28.1	use or operate any fixed floodlight,				
	4.28.2	use or operate any portable floodlight between sunrise and sunset on land to which this subparagraph applies;				
4.29	Marine lif	e				
	introduce a	my marine life to any waters located on local government land;				
4.30	Model air	craft, boats and cars				
	4.30.1	fly or operate a model aircraft, model boat or model/remote control car which by the use thereof may cause or be likely to cause injury or discomfort to any person being on or in the vicinity of local government land or detract from or be likely to detract from another person's lawful use and enjoyment of the land;				
	4.30.2	fly or operate a model aircraft, model boat or model/remote control car on land to which the Council has resolved this subparagraph shall apply;				
4.31	Motor vehicles					
	comprising	; a park, garden or reserve:				
	4.31.1	drive or propel a motor vehicle unless on an area or road constructed or set aside by the Council for the parking, driving or riding of motor vehicles;				
	4.31.2	take part in any race, test or trial of any kind utilising a motor vehicle except in an area that has been properly constructed or set aside by the Council for that purpose; or				
	4.31.3	promote or organise any race, test or trial of any kind in which motor vehicles take part unless the race, test or trial is to take place on an area that has been properly constructed or set aside by the Council for that purpose;				
4.32	No liquor					
	4.32.1	consume, carry or be in possession or charge of any liquor on any local government land to which this subparagraph applies (provided the land constitutes a park or reserve);				
	4.32.2	excepting sealed containers, consume, carry or be in possession or charge of any liquor in an open container on any local government land to which this subparagraph applies (provided the land constitutes a park or reserve);				
4.33	Overhang	ing articles or displaying personal items				
	suspend or present a n	hang an article or object from a building, verandah, pergola, post or other structure where it might uisance or danger to a person using the land or be of an unsightly nature;				
4.34	Picking of	fruit, nuts or berries				
	except in a	ny community garden, pick fruit, nuts, seeds or berries from any plant,				
4.35	Playing A	rea				
	use or occu	ipy a playing area:				
	4.35.1	in such a manner as to damage or be likely to damage the surface of the playing area or infrastructure				

- 4.35.1 in such a manner as to damage or be likely to damage the surface of the playing area or infrastructure (above and under ground level);
- 4.35.2 in a manner contrary to the purpose for which the playing area was intended to be used or occupied; or
- 4.35.3 contrary to directions indicated on a sign displayed adjacent to the playing area;

# 4.36 Playing games or sport

4.36.1 play or practice a game in any area where a sign indicates that the game is prohibited;

- 4.36.2 promote, organise or take part in any organised athletic sport in any area to which this subparagraph applies;
- 4.36.3 play any organised competition sport, as distinct from organised social play, in any area to which this subparagraph applies;
- 4.36.4 engage in participate in or conduct any organised group fitness activity or training to which this subparagraph applies;

# 4.37 Pontoons

install or maintain a pontoon or jetty in any waters;

# 4.38 Preaching and Canvassing

preach, canvass, harangue or otherwise solicit for religious purposes except on any land or part thereof where the Council has, by resolution, determined this restriction shall not apply;

# 4.39 Public Exhibitions and Displays

- 4.39.1 sing, busk or play a musical instrument for the apparent purpose of either entertaining others or receiving money;
- 4.39.2 conduct or hold any concert, festival, show, public gathering, circus, performance or any other similar activity;
- 4.39.3 erect or inflate any inflatable castle;

4.39.4 cause any public exhibitions or displays;

# 4.40 Removing Material

carry away or remove any earth, soil, sand, timber, stones, pebbles, rocks, minerals, plant material (dead or living), animal remains (including shells and fossils) or other organic or inorganic materials or any part of the land;

#### 4.41 Selling

sell anything or display anything for sale;

# 4.42 Swimming

subject to the provisions of the Harbors and Navigation Act 1993 swim in, bathe or enter any waters except:

- 4.42.1 in an area which the Council has determined may be used for such purpose; and
- 4.42.2 in accordance with any conditions that the Council may have determined by resolution apply to such

#### 4.43 Trading

sell, buy, offer or display anything for sale;

#### 4.44 Weddings, functions and special events

use:

- 4.44.1 hold, conduct or participate in a marriage ceremony, funeral or special event;
- 4.44.2 erect a marquee, stage or structure for the purpose of holding or conducting a wedding, funeral or special event;
- 4.44.3 hold or conduct any filming where the filming is for a commercial purpose;

#### 4.45 Wetlands

subject to the Natural Resources Management Act 2004, where that land constitutes a wetland:

- 4.45.1 operate a model boat;
- 4.45.2 fish, or take any aquatic creature;
- 4.45.3 introduce any fish or aquatic creature;
- 4.45.4 take or draw water,

#### 4.46 Wheeled recreational devices

Working on vehicles

use a wheeled recreational device on land to which the Council has resolved this subparagraph applies;

# perform the work of repairing, washing, painting, panel beating or other work of any nature on or to any vehicle, except for running repairs in the case of breakdown.

#### 5. Prohibited Activities

4.47

A person must not, on any local government land:

#### 5.1 Children's playgrounds

use any device, equipment or apparatus installed in a children's playground if that person is of or over the age indicated by sign or notice as the age limit for using such equipment, apparatus or other installed device;

#### 5.2 Fishing

deposit or leave any dead fish (in part or whole) or offal;

# 5.3 Glass

wilfully break any glass, china or other brittle material;

# 5.4 Interference with Land

Interfere with, alter or damage the land (including a building, structure or fixture located on the land) including:

- 5.4.1 altering the construction or arrangement of the land to permit or facilitate access from an adjacent property;
- 5.4.2 erecting or installing a structure in, on, across, under or over the land;
- 5.4.3 changing or interfering with the construction, arrangement or materials of the land;
- 5.4.4 planting a tree or other vegetation on the land, interfering with the vegetation on the land or removing vegetation from the land; or
- 5.4.5 otherwise use the land in a manner contrary to the purpose for which the land was designed to be used;

# 5.5 Interference with Permitted Use

interrupt, disrupt or interfere with any other person's use of local government land which is permitted or for which permission has been granted;

# 5.6 Playing games

- play or practise a game:
- 5.6.1 which is likely to cause damage to the land or anything on it;
- 5.6.2 in any area where a sign indicates that the game is prohibited;

# 5.7 Smoking

- smoke tobacco or any other substance:
- 5.7.1 in any building or part of any building; or
- 5.7.2 on any local government land;
- to which the subparagraph applies;

## 5.8 Solicitation

tout or solicit customers for the parking of vehicles or for any other purpose whatsoever,

# 5.9 Toilets

in any public convenience:

- 5.9.1 urinate other than in a urinal or pan or defecate other than in a pan provided for that purpose;
- 5.9.2 smoke tobacco or any other substance;
- 5.9.3 deposit anything in a pan, urinal or drain which is likely to cause a blockage;
- 5.9.4 use it for a purpose for which it was not designed or constructed;
- 5.10 Use of Council rubbish bins

deposit any commercial waste or other rubbish emanating from commercial premises in any Council rubbish bin;

# 5.11 Use of equipment

use any item of equipment or property belonging to the Council other than in the manner and for the purpose for which it was designed, constructed or intended to be used or in such a manner as is likely to damage or destroy it.

#### Part 3 – Miscellaneous

#### 6. Directions

- A person must comply with any reasonable direction or request from an authorised person relating to:
- 6.1 that person's use of the land;
- 6.2 that person's conduct and behaviour on the land;
- 6.3 that person's safety on the land;
- 6.4 the safety and enjoyment of the land by other persons.

# 7. Removal of Animals and Exclusion of Persons

- 7.1 If any animal is found on local government land in breach of this by-law:
  - 7.1.1 any person in charge of the animal shall forthwith remove it from that land on the request of an authorised person; and
    - 7.1.2 any authorised person may remove any animal from the land if the person fails to comply with the request, or if no person is in charge of the animal.
- 7.2 An authorised person may direct any person who is considered to be committing, or has committed, a breach of this by-law to leave local government land.

# 8. Removal of Encroachment or Interference

Any person who encroaches onto, interferes with, or alters local government land contrary to this by-law must at the request in writing of an authorised person:

- 8.1 cease the encroachment or interference; and
- 8.2 remove the source of the encroachment or interference; and
- 8.3 reinstate the land to the same standard it was prior to the encroachment, interference or alteration.

#### 9. Council May do Work

# If a person:

- 9.1 fails to remove an encroachment or interference on local government land in accordance with a request of an authorised officer pursuant to paragraph 8 of this by-law; or
- 9.2 intentionally or negligently damages local government land,
- an authorised person may:
- 9.3 undertake the work to comply with the request pursuant to paragraph 8 and/or repair the damage; and
- 9.4 recover the cost of completing the work from the person.

# 10. Exemptions

- 10.1 The restrictions in this by-law do not apply to any Police Officer, Council Officer or Council employee acting in the course and within the scope of that person's normal duties, or to a contractor while performing work for the Council and while acting under the supervision of a Council Officer, or to an emergency worker performing emergency duties.
- 10.2 The restrictions in paragraphs 4.1.2, 4.4, 4.7, 4.13, 4.17, 4.19.2, 4.38, and 4.39.4 of this by-law do not apply to:
  - 10.2.1 electoral matters authorised by a candidate and which relate to a Commonwealth or State election that occurs during the period commencing at 5:00pm on the day before the issue of the writ or writs for the election and ending at the close of polls on polling day; or
  - 10.2.2 electoral matters authorised by a candidate and which relate to an election under the *Local Government Act 1999* or the *Local Government (Elections) Act 1999* that occurs during the period commencing four weeks immediately before the date that has been set (either by or under either Act) for polling day and ending at the close of voting on polling day; or
  - 10.2.3 matters which relate to, and occur during the course of and for the purpose of a referendum.

#### 11. Application of Paragraphs

Any of paragraphs 4.23, 4.26, 4.28.2, 4.30.2, 4.32, 4.36.2, 4.36.3, 4.36.4 and 4.46 of this by-law shall apply only in such portion or portions of the area as the Council may by resolution direct from time to time in accordance with Section 246(3)(e) of the *Local Government Act 1999*.

#### 12. Revocation

Council's Local Government Land By-law 2015, published in the Gazette on 3 September 2015, is revoked on the day on which this by-law comes into operation.

The foregoing by-law was duly made and passed at a meeting of the Council of the City of Salisbury on the  $27^{th}$  day of June 2022 by an absolute majority of the members for the time being constituting the Council, there being at least two thirds of the members present.

Mr John Harry Chief Executive Officer

# CITY OF SALISBURY

#### LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1999 DOG AND CAT MANAGEMENT ACT 1995

By-law No. 5 of 2022–Dogs

For the management and control of dogs within the Council's area.

#### Part 1 - Preliminary

1. Short Title

This by-law may be cited as the Dogs By-law 2022.

# 2. Commencement

This by-law will come into operation four months after the day on which it is published in the *Gazette* in accordance with Section 249(5) of the *Local Government Act 1999*.

3. Definitions

3.6

# In this by-law:

- 3.1 **approved kennel establishment** means a building, structure or area approved by the relevant authority, pursuant to the *Planning, Development Infrastructure Act 2016* for the keeping of dogs on a temporary or permanent basis;
- 3.2 **assistance dog** means a dog trained and used for the purpose of assisting a person who is wholly or partially disabled and includes a dog undergoing training of a kind approved by the Board for assistance dogs;
- 3.3 Board has the same meaning as in the Dog and Cat Management Act 1995;
- 3.4 **control**, in relation to a dog, includes the person having ownership, possession or charge of, or authority over, the dog;
- 3.5 dog has the same meaning as in the *Dog and Cat Management Act 1995*;
  - effective control means a person exercising effective control of a dog either:
    - 3.6.1 by means of a physical restraint,
    - 3.6.2 by command, the dog being in close proximity to the person, and the person being able to see the dog at all times;
- 3.7 **keep** includes the provision of food or shelter;
- 3.8 **local government land** has the same meaning as in the *Local Government Act 1999*;
- 3.9 wetland area includes any park, reserve, scrub, trail or other land adjacent to a wetland.

# Part 2 – Dog Management and Control

#### 4. Dog Free Areas

A person must not allow a dog in that person's control to be in, or remain:

- 4.1 on any playing field on a park or reserve during times when organised sport is being played;
- 4.2 on any local government land to which this paragraph applies;
- unless the dog is an assistance dog.

# 5. Dog on Leash Areas

A person must not allow a dog under that person's control to be or remain:

- 5.1 on local government land or public place to which the Council has resolved that this subparagraph
- 5.2 applies; on any park or reserve during times when organised sport is being played;
- 5.3 in any wetland area;

unless the dog is secured by a strong leash not exceeding 2 metres in length which is either tethered securely to a fixed object capable of securing the dog or held by a person capable of controlling the dog and preventing it from being a nuisance or a danger to other persons.

#### 6. **Dog Exercise Areas**

- 6.1 A person may enter upon any part of local government land identified by the Council as a dog exercise area in accordance with paragraph 9 for the purpose of exercising a dog under their control.
- 6.2 Where a person enters upon such part of local government land for that purpose, they must ensure that the dog under their control remains under effective control while on that land.

# 7. Limit on Dog Numbers

- 7.1 The limit on the number of dogs to be kept at any premises shall be two dogs.
- 7.2 A person must not, without permission, keep any dog at any premises where the number of dogs on the premises exceeds the limit unless:
  - 7.2.1 the premises is an approved kennel establishment, or
  - 7.2.2 the Council has exempted the premises from compliance with this sub-paragraph.

#### 8. Dog Faeces

A person must not, on local government land or a public place, be in control of a dog, unless the person has, in their possession, a bag or other object for the purpose of picking up and lawfully disposing of any faeces that the dog may generate while in that place.

#### Part 3 - Miscellaneous

# 9. Application

- 9.1 Any of paragraphs 4, 5.1 and 6.1 of this by-law shall apply only in such portion or portions of the area as the Council may by resolution direct from time to time in accordance with Section 246 of the *Local Government Act 1999* and as are denoted by signs erected by the Council and information provided to the public in a manner determined by the Council's Chief Executive Officer.
- 9.2 The limits prescribed in paragraph 7 of this by-law do not include any dog that is under three months of age.

#### 10. Revocation

Council's *Dogs By-law 2015*, published in the *Gazette* on 3 September 2015, is revoked on the day on which this by-law comes into operation.

The foregoing by-law was duly made and passed at a meeting of the Council of the City of Salisbury held on the 27<sup>th</sup> day of June 2022 by an absolute majority of the members for the time being constituting the Council, there being at least two thirds of the members present.

# Mr John Harry

Chief Executive Officer

# CITY OF SALISBURY

# LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1999

# By-law No. 6 of 2022—Waste Management

To regulate and control the removal of domestic, recyclable and green organic waste from premises, for the prevention and suppression of musances, and for regulating the management of property of the Council.

# Part 1 – Preliminary

# 1. Short Title

2.

This by-law may be cited as the Waste Management By-law 2022.

#### Commencement

This by-law will come into operation four months after the day on which it is published in the *Gazette* in accordance with Section 249(5) of the *Local Government Act 1999*.

# 3. Definitions

In this by-law:

- 3.1 **green organics** means any clean organic matter, free of any excess soil, consisting of lawn clippings, plants, vegetables, eggs, shells, bones, leaves, prunings, horse manure, pet waste, nesting material or other materials as specified by the Council;
- 3.2 green organics container means a container for the reception of green organics;
- 3.3 **hard rubbish** means any internal and external household items such as whitegoods, entertainment appliances, furniture and mattresses able to be lifted and carried by two persons but excludes any household waste;
- 3.4 **household waste** means any kind of domestic and kitchen waste generated from residences, but excludes liquids, metals (other than food containers), building materials, stones, bricks, soil, lead, acid batteries and any dangerous or toxic waste;
- 3.5 household waste container means a container for the reception of household waste;
- 3.6 **recyclables** means newspapers, magazines, paper, cardboard, plastic containers of a type specified by the Council, tins, cans, glass, milk and juice containers, solid plastic material and other materials as specified by the Council;
- 3.7 recyclables container means a container for the reception of recyclables.

#### Part 2 - Waste Collection

# 4. **Provide Containers**

- 4.1 An occupier of domestic premises must keep on their premises a household waste container and a recyclables container as approved by the Council.
- 4.2 An occupier of domestic premises may keep on their premises a green organics container as approved by the Council.

# 5. Management of Waste Collection Service

#### An occupier of premises must:

- 5.1 Household Waste
  - 5.1.1 ensure that the household waste container kept on their premises is approved by the Council; and
  - 5.1.2 ensure that the household waste container contains only household waste;
- 5.2 Recyclables
  - 5.2.1 ensure that the recyclables container kept on their premises is approved by the Council; and
  - 5.2.2 ensure that the recyclables container contains only recyclables;

#### 5.3 Green Organics

- 5.3.1 ensure that the green organics container be a container that is approved by the Council; and
- 5.3.2 ensure that the green organics container contains only green organics;

# 5.4 Keep Container Clean

cause each container to be kept in a clean and sanitary condition, maintained in good order and repair, and kept waterproof at all times;

# 5.5 Sealing of Container

cause the lid of each container to continuously and securely cover the container body except when waste is being deposited in or removed from the container;

#### 5.6 Damage

ensure that each container is maintained so that it is not damaged or worn to the extent that:

- 5.6.1 it is not robust;
- 5.6.2 the container body is not watertight,
- 5.6.3 it is unable to be moved on its wheels efficiently;
- 5.6.4 the lid does not seal on the container when closed;
- 5.6.5 its efficiency or use is otherwise impaired;

# 5.7 Collection Services

- 5.7.1 An occupier of premises must facilitate the collection and removal of household waste, recyclables or green organics from their premises by placing the relevant waste container out for collection in accordance with:
  - 5.7.1.1 the collection service requirements specified in clause 5.7.2; or
  - 5.7.1.2 the terms of any permit granted by the Council for the placement of waste containers; or
  - 5.7.1.3 as otherwise approved by the Council.
- 5.7.2 The collection service requirements for the collection of household waste containers, recyclables containers and green organics containers are:
  - 5.7.2.1 the container must be placed out for collection no earlier than 24 hours prior to the appointed collection time;
  - 5.7.2.2 where there is a kerb, the container must be placed on the footpath, verge or nature strip directly adjacent the premises, as near as practicable to the kerb so that the side of the container on which the hinges of the lid are situated face the premises;
  - 5.7.2.3 where there is no kerb, the container must be placed on the road verge directly adjacent the premises, abutting the edge of (but not on) the carriageway and positioned so that the side of the container on which the hinges of the lid are situated face the premises;
  - 5.7.2.4 the container must not be placed within 1 meter of another waste container;
  - 5.7.2.5 the container must not be placed under the overhanging branches of any tree;
  - 5.7.2.6 the container must be removed from its position on the same day as the collection, after the collection has taken place.

#### 6. Interference With Garbage/Hard Rubbish

A person must not remove, disturb or interfere with any recyclables or hard rubbish (including bottles, newspapers, cans, containers or packaging) that has been placed:

- 6.1 for disposal in or near a container, or
- 6.2 on a public street or road for collection by the Council, its agents or contractors, except with the permission of the Council or with the authority of the owner.

#### Part 3 - Miscellaneous

Revocation

Council's Waste Management By-law 2015, published in the Gazette on 3 September 2015, is revoked on the day on which this by-law comes into operation.

The foregoing by-law was duly made and passed at a meeting of the Council of the City of Salisbury on the 27<sup>th</sup> day of June 2022 by an absolute majority of the members for the time being constituting the Council, there being at least two thirds of the members present.

Mr John Harry Chief Executive Officer

#### CITY OF TEA TREE GULLY

#### Adoption of Valuations and Declaration of Rates 2022-2023

Notice is hereby given that on 5 July 2022 the City of Tea Tree Gully, adopted and declared as follows for the year ending 30 June 2023:

- 1. Capital valuations for rating purposes as supplied by the Valuer-General totalling \$24,647,439,700 (rateable properties \$23,838,875,034).
- 2. A minimum amount of \$1,280 payable by way of general rates on rateable properties within the area of the City of Tea Tree Gully.
- 3. Differential general rates based upon the use of the land as follows:
  - 3.1 "Commercial—Shop", "Commercial—Office", "Commercial—Other", "Industrial—Light" and "Industrial—Other": 0.599611 cents in the dollar;
  - 3.2 "Vacant Land": 0.666234 cents in the dollar;
  - 3.3 "Residential", "Primary Production" and "Other": 0.333117 cents in the dollar;
- 4. A separate rate of 0.007818 cents in the dollar on the capital value of all rateable land within the area of City of Tea Tree Gully to reimburse the amount contributed to the Green Adelaide Board.

Dated: 14 July 2022

J. MOYLE Chief Executive Officer

# CITY OF UNLEY

# Adoption of Valuations and Declaration of Rates

NOTICE is hereby given that the Corporation of the City of Unley at a meeting on 27 June 2022 for the financial year ending 30 June 2023 resolved as follows:

#### Adoption of Valuations

Adopt for rating purposes the Government assessment of capital value being \$20,577,659,880 as detailed in the valuation roll prepared by the Valuer-General in relation to the Council area and specified 1 July 2022 as the day as and from which the valuations shall become and be the valuations of the Council.

# Declaration of Rates

Declared differential general rates, based upon the capital value of the land as follows:

- (a) in respect to rateable land which is categorised as Residential, a differential general rate of 0.001869 rate in the dollar;
- (b) in respect to rateable land which is categorised as Commercial—Shop, Industry—Light, Industry—Other, Primary Production, Vacant Land and Other, a differential general rate of 0.004715 rate in the dollar; and
- (c) in respect to rateable land which is categorised as Commercial—Office and Commercial—Other, a differential general rate of 0.005425 rate in the dollar.

Fix a minimum amount payable by way of general rates at \$907.

A separate rate of 0.00007365 rate in the dollar as the Regional Landscape Levy in accordance with the requirements of the Landscape South Australia Act 2019.

Differential Separate rates as follows:

- in that part of the Council's area comprising rateable land with an Unley Road address, a differential separate rate of 0.0003303 rate in the dollar, capped at \$2,000 in respect of land uses: Commercial—Shop, Commercial—Office and Commercial—Other.
- in that part of the Council's area comprising rateable land with a Goodwood Road address and situated between Mitchell Street/Arundel Avenue to the south and Leader Street/Parsons Street to the North, a differential separate rate of 0.001198 rate in the dollar, capped at \$2,000 in respect of land uses: Commercial-Office and Commercial-Office and Commercial-Other.
- in that part of the Council's area comprising rateable land with a King William Road address and situated between Greenhill Road and Commercial Road, a differential separate rate of 0.002005 rate in the dollar capped at \$2,000 in respect of land use: Commercial—Shop.
- in that part of the Council's area comprising rateable land along Fullarton Road between Cross Road and Fisher Street, a fixed charge of \$250 in respect of land uses: Commercial-Shop, Commercial-Office and Commercial-Other.

Dated 12 July 2022

P. TSOKAS Chief Executive Officer

#### TOWN OF GAWLER

#### Adoption of Valuation and Declaration of Rates 2022-2023

NOTICE is hereby given that the Town of Gawler, at its meeting held on Tuesday, 28 June 2022 and for the fiscal year ending 30 June 2023 adopted the following Valuation and Declaration of Rates:

#### Adoption of Valuation

Adopts, pursuant to Section 167(2)(a) of the *Local Government Act 1999* the most recent valuations supplied by the Valuer General of the capital value of land within the Council's area totalling \$4,852,274,860 and that this figure be adopted for rating purposes for the financial year ending 30 June 2023.

#### Differential General Rates

Adopts, having taken into account the general principles of rating outlined in Section 150 of the *Local Government Act 1999* and the requirements of Section 153(2) of the *Local Government Act 1999*, pursuant to Sections 153(1)(b) and 156(1)(a) of the *Local Government Act 1999* and Regulation 14(1) of the *Local Government (General) Regulations 2013* the following Differential General Rates be declared in respect of all rateable land in the Council's area for the financial year ending 30 June 2023 varying on the basis of the use of the land:

- (a) Residential 0.4653 cents in the dollar
- (b) Commercial Shop 1.146 cents in the dollar
- (c) Commercial Office 1.146 cents in the dollar
- (d) Commercial Other 1.146 cents in the dollar
- (e) Industry Light 1.146 cents in the dollar
- (f) Industry Other 1.146 cents in the dollar
- (g) Primary Production 0.4653 cents in the dollar
- (h) Vacant Land 0.74448 cents in the dollar
- (i) Other 0.4653 cents in the dollar

#### Minimum Rate

Adopts, pursuant to Section 158(1)(a) of the *Local Government Act 1999* for the financial year ending 30 June 2023 a minimum amount payable by way of rates of \$1,085.00 being a 3.5% increase from the 2021/2022 financial year, in respect of all rateable land in the Council's area.

#### Waste Management Annual Service Charge

Adopts, pursuant to Section 155 of the *Local Government Act 1999*, for the financial year ending 30 June 2023 an annual service charge of \$233.00 based on the nature of the service imposed on all occupied land in the Council's area (excluding Primary production properties with no, or minimal, built form) to which the Council provides or makes available the prescribed service of waste collection, treatment and disposal.

#### Separate Rate for Town Centre Business Development and Marketing

Adopts, pursuant to Section 154 of the Local Government Act 1999, for the financial year ending 30 June 2023, a separate differential rate for the purpose of business development and marketing in respect of all rateable land within the hatched area A defined within Attachment 1 of the 28 June 2022 report, and to which the following land uses have been attributed:

- Category 2 (Commercial Shop), (a)
- Category 3 (Commercial Office), Category 4 (Commercial Office), Category 5 (Industry Light), Category 6 (Industry Other) (b)
- (c)
- (d)
- (e)

# of 0.065357 cents in the dollar based on the capital value of the land.

#### Separate Rate for Non Town Centre Business Development

Adopts, pursuant to Section 154 of the Local Government Act 1999, for the financial year ending 30 June 2023, a separate differential rate for the purpose of business development in respect of all rateable land within the Council area excluding the hatched area A as defined in Attachment 1 of the 28 June 2022 report, and to which the following land uses have been attributed:

- Category 2 (Commercial Shop), (a)
- Category 3 (Commercial Office), Category 4 (Commercial Other), (b)
- (c)
- (d)
- Category 5 (Industry Light), Category 6 (Industry Other) (e)

of 0.031843 cents in the dollar based on the capital value of the land.

#### Separate Rate for State Government Regional Landscape Levy

Adopts, in accordance with Section 69 of the Landscape South Australia Act 2019 and Section 154 of the Local Government Act 1999 for the financial year ending 30 June 2023, and in order to reimburse to the Council the amount of \$378,016 contributed to the Northern & Yorke Landscape Board, a separate rate of 0.007957 cents in the dollar based upon the capital value of rateable land, on all rateable land in the Council area and within the Northern & Yorke Landscape Board area.

#### Separate Rate – Gawler East Transport Infrastructure

Adopts, pursuant to Section 154(2)(b) of the Local Government Act 1999, for the financial year ending 30 June 2023, a proportional separate rate on the following land parcels for the purpose of securing developer contributions towards construction of the Gawler East Link Road and associated deferred infrastructure (including trees), which will be of direct benefit to the land and occupiers of the land:

Assessment No.	Certificate of Title	Approx. Total Hectares	Per Ha Rate Payable (\$)	Total Contribution Payable (\$)
Development Area – Sp	ringwood Communities			
154322	CT 6244/939 & CT 6256/75	54.6114	\$34,651.77	\$1,892,381.60
40868	CT 6118/249	32.34	\$28,920.36	\$935,284.52
155626	CT 6263/756	47.54	\$23,210.66	\$1,103,434.67
156735	CT 6267/170	8.6935	\$39,399.98	\$342,523.71
Development Area – Ot	her Future Developers			
144572	CT 6208/637	1.60	\$83,354.93	\$133,367.89
144564	CT 6208/636	1.41	\$83,839.76	\$118,214.07
144556	CT 6208/635	3.10	\$55,703.78	\$172,681.73
68584	CT 5462/883	1.00	\$83,308.08	\$83,308.08
68576	CT 5462/882	1.00	\$83,308.08	\$83,308.08
68802	CT 5592/947	4.22	\$32,815.76	\$138,482.52
68827	CT 5636/60	3.26	\$83,308.08	\$271,584.35
68819	CT 5636/59	5.59	\$81,777.25	\$457,134.84
68568	CT 5463/945	1.32	\$82,659.80	\$109,110.93
88222	CT 5809/64	1.58	\$83,308.08	\$131,626.77
79776	CT 5809/65	1.38	\$83,308.08	\$114,965.15
149866	CT 5456/200	5.52	\$62,379.82	\$344,336.61
149899	CT 5098/618	3.62	\$35,793.61	\$129,572.87
67345	CT 5786/841	1.00	\$83,308.08	\$83,308.08
149874	CT 5162/73	2.02	\$50,688.55	\$102,390.87
149882	CT 5162/74	2.02	\$64,668.35	\$130,630.06
150421	CT 6206/115	2.91	\$59,565.99	\$173,337.04
67078	CT 6149/844	2.20	\$73,972.81	\$162,740.18
70808	CT 5903/197	2.28	\$65,667.97	\$149,722.96
67086	CT 5899/721	4.31	\$74,572.06	\$321,405.56
68535	CT 6112/595	0.53	\$83,308.09	\$44,153.29
67191	CT 5481/177	5.15	\$38,444.40	\$197,988.64
67183	CT 5125/726	4.05	\$42,106.11	\$170,529.75
67175	CT 5894/916	4.10	\$19,649.87	\$80,564.48
133348	CT 6181/286	3.04	\$16,031.68	\$48,736.32
144491	CT 6207/896	3.94	\$67,235.93	\$264,909.58

Assessment No.	Certificate of Title	Approx. Total Hectares	Per Ha Rate Payable (\$)	Total Contribution Payable (\$)
67159	CT 6193/982	4.62	\$26,444.42	\$122,173.22
67142	CT 5485/704	4.08	\$10,109.33	\$41,246.06
5262	CT 6211/743	4.81	\$17,838.26	\$85,802.03

#### Separate Rate – Gawler East Community Infrastructure

Adopts, pursuant to Section 154(2)(b) of the *Local Government Act 1999*, for the financial year ending 30 June 2023, a proportional separate rate on the following land parcels for the purpose of securing developer contributions towards community infrastructure, which will be of direct benefit to the land and occupiers of the land:

Assessment No.	Certificate of Title	Approx. Total Hectares	Per Ha Rate Payable (\$)	Total Contribution Payable (\$)
Development Area – Sp	ringwood Communities			
154322	CT 6244/939 & CT 6256/75	54.6114	\$22,326.80	\$1,219,297.84
40868	CT 6118/249	32.34	\$18,632.76	\$602,583.48
155626	CT 6263/756	47.54	\$14,954.12	\$710,918.95
156735	CT 6267/170	8.6935	\$25,419.13	\$220,981.19
Development Area – Ot	ther Future Developers	· · ·		
144572	CT 6208/637	1.60	\$38,531.16	\$61,649.85
144564	CT 6208/636	1.41	\$38,780.19	\$54,680.07
144556	CT 6208/635	3.10	\$26,085.45	\$80,864.90
68584	CT 5462/883	1.00	\$38,507.10	\$38,507.10
68576	CT 5462/882	1.00	\$38,507.10	\$38,507.10
68802	CT 5592/947	4.22	\$15,786.08	\$66,617.27
68827	CT 5636/60	3.26	\$38,507.09	\$125,533.13
68819	CT 5636/59	5.59	\$37,818.24	\$211,403.95
68568	CT 5463/945	1.32	\$38,215.37	\$50,444.29
88222	CT 5809/64	1.58	\$38,507.10	\$60,841.21
79776	CT 5809/65	1.38	\$38,507.10	\$53,139.79
149866	CT 5456/200	5.52	\$29,089.60	\$160,574.59
149899	CT 5098/618	3.62	\$17,126.08	\$61,996.42
67345	CT 5786/841	1.00	\$38,507.10	\$38,507.10
149874	CT 5162/73	2.02	\$23,828.65	\$48,133.87
149882	CT 5162/74	2.02	\$30,119.41	\$60,841.21
150421	CT 6206/115	2.91	\$27,828.32	\$80,980.41
67078	CT 6149/844	2.20	\$34,306.32	\$75,473.91
70808	CT 5903/197	2.28	\$30,569.23	\$69,697.84
67086	CT 5899/721	4.31	\$34,575.98	\$149,022.45
68535	CT 6112/595	0.53	\$38,507.08	\$20,408.75
67191	CT 5481/177	5.15	\$18,318.91	\$94,342.38
67183	CT 5125/726	4.05	\$19,966.64	\$80,864.90
67175	CT 5894/916	4.10	\$9,861.57	\$40,432.45
133348	CT 6181/286	3.04	\$8,233.43	\$25,029.62
144491	CT 6207/896	3.94	\$31,274.80	\$123,222.70
67159	CT 6193/982	4.62	\$12,919.05	\$59,686.00
67142	CT 5485/704	4.08	\$5,568.43	\$22,719.19
5262	CT 6211/743	4.81	\$9,046.36	\$43,513.01

# Separate Rate – Gawler East Traffic Interventions

Adopts, pursuant to Section 154(2)(b) of the *Local Government Act 1999*, for the financial year ending 30 June 2023, a proportional separate rate on the following land parcels for the purpose of securing developer contributions towards Gawler East Traffic Interventions infrastructure, which will be of direct benefit to the land and occupiers of the land:

Assessment No.	Certificate of Title	Approx. Total Hectares	Per Ha Rate Payable (\$)	Total Contribution Payable (\$)	
Development Area – Sp	Development Area – Springwood Communities				
154322	CT 6244/939 & CT 6256/75	54.6114	\$48,350.02	\$2,640,462.40	
40868	CT 6118/249	32.34	\$40,352.92	\$1,305,013.55	
155626	CT 6263/756	47.54	\$32,386.10	\$1,539,635.42	
156735	CT 6267/170	8.6935	\$54,975.26	\$477,927.39	

144572	CT 6208/637	1.60	\$16,654.16	\$26,646.65
144564	CT 6208/636	1.41	\$16,761.80	\$23,634.13
144556	CT 6208/635	3.10	\$11,274.80	\$34,951.89
68584	CT 5462/883	1.00	\$16,643.76	\$16,643.70
68576	CT 5462/882	1.00	\$16,643.76	\$16,643.7
68802	CT 5592/947	4.22	\$6,823.15	\$28,793.7
68827	CT 5636/60	3.26	\$16,643.76	\$54,258.6
68819	CT 5636/59	5.59	\$16,346.02	\$91,374.2
68568	CT 5463/945	1.32	\$16,517.67	\$21,803.3
88222	CT 5809/64	1.58	\$16,643.76	\$26,297.1
79776	CT 5809/65	1.38	\$16,643.76	\$22,968.3
149866	CT 5456/200	5.52	\$12,573.27	\$69,404.4
149899	CT 5098/618	3.62	\$7,402.33	\$26,796.4
67345	CT 5786/841	1.00	\$16,643.76	\$16,643.7
149874	CT 5162/73	2.02	\$10,299.36	\$20,804.7
149882	CT 5162/74	2.02	\$13,018.39	\$26,297.1
150421	CT 6206/115	2.91	\$12,028.12	\$35,001.8
67078	CT 6149/844	2.20	\$14,828.08	\$32,621.7
70808	CT 5903/197	2.28	\$13,212.80	\$30,125.1
67086	CT 5899/721	4.31	\$14,944.63	\$64,411.3
68535	CT 6112/595	0.53	\$16,643.74	\$8,821.1
67191	CT 5481/177	5.15	\$7,917.90	\$40,777.2
67183	CT 5125/726	4.05	\$8,630.10	\$34,951.8
67175	CT 5894/916	4.10	\$4,262.42	\$17,475.9
133348	CT 6181/286	3.04	\$3,558.70	\$10,818.4
144491	CT 6207/896	3.94	\$13,517.77	\$53,260.0
67159	CT 6193/982	4.62	\$5,583.94	\$25,797.8
67142	CT 5485/704	4.08	\$2,406.82	\$9,819.8
5262	CT 6211/743	4.81	\$3,910.07	\$18,807.4

#### Residential Rates Cap

Adopts, pursuant to Section 153(3) of the Local Government Act 1999, and upon application from the principal ratepayer, a maximum increase in General rates to be charged on any rateable land that constitutes the principal place of residence of the principal ratepayer as follows:

- 10% for self-funded retirees or those ratepayers whose primary income source is fixed government benefits
- 20% for all other ratepayers

where the increase is as a result of significant valuation movements except where:

- significant capital improvements have been made to the property; or (a)
- the basis for rating or rebates has changed from the previous year; or new building work and/or development activity has occurred on the land; or (b)
- (c)
- changes in land use, wholly or partially have occurred; or changes in zoning have occurred; or (d)
- (e)
- (f)
- (g) (h)
- the ownership of the rateable property has changed from the previous year; or the property is no longer the principal place of residence of the principal ratepayer; or a correction has been made to a previously undervalued property by the Valuer General; or the property is owned by a company or incorporated body.
- (i)

#### Alteration of General Rates for Commercial and Industrial properties

Alters, pursuant to Section 158(1)(b) of the Local Government Act 1999, the amount of General rates otherwise payable in respect of any rateable land with a land use of Category 2 (Commercial – Shop), Category 3 (Commercial – Office), Category 4 (Commercial – Other), Category 5 (Industry – Light) and Category 6 (Industry – Other) as follows:

Property Valuation \$	General Rate	Adjustment %	Effective Net General Rate
0 - 499,999	0.011460	45.53%	0.00624246
500,000 - 749,999	0.011460	40.99%	0.00676267
750,000 – 999,999	0.011460	36.45%	0.00728287
1,000,000 - 1,499,999	0.011460	31.91%	0.00780308
1,500,000 - 1,999,999	0.011460	22.83%	0.00884349
2,000,000 - 4,999,999	0.011460	16.02%	0.00962379
5,000,000 +	0.011460	-	0.011460

#### Withholding of Discretionary General Rate Adjustments for Commercial properties in the Town Centre in a state of neglect

Taking into consideration the determining factors outlined in Section 3.10 of the Strategic Rating Policy, not withhold any Discretionary Rate Adjustments provided to commercial properties (pursuant to Section 158(1)(b) of the *Local Government Act 1999*), on the basis that Council has deemed that no commercial properties are currently in a state of neglect which detracts significantly from the amenity of their locality.

#### Payment of General Rates and Service Charges

Adopts, pursuant to Section 181(2) of the Local Government Act 1999, rates and charges will be payable in four equal or approximately equal instalments falling due on:

- (a) 1 September 2022;
- (b) 1 December 2022;
- (c) 1 March 2023; and
- (d) 1 June 2023

Dated: 5 July 2022

H. INAT Chief Executive Officer

#### ADELAIDE HILLS COUNCIL

#### Adoption of Valuation and Declaration of Rates 2022-23

NOTICE is given that at the meeting held on 28 June 2022, the Council, for the financial year ending 30 June 2023, resolved as follows:

# Determination of Valuation—2022-23

To adopt for rating purposes the most recent valuations of the State Valuation Office of the capital value of land within the Council area, amounting to \$13,641,908,780.

# **Declaration of General Rates**

- 1. To declare general rates based upon the capital value of rateable land:
  - (a) with a category (a), (g), (h) and (i) (Residential, Primary Production, Vacant Land and Other) land use, a rate of 0.2135 cents in the dollar; and
  - (b) with a category (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) (Commercial—Shop, Commercial—Office, Commercial—Other, Industry—Light and Industry—Other) land use, a rate of 0.2455 cents in the dollar.
- 2. To declare a fixed charge of \$733 in respect of all rateable land.

# Declaration of a Separate Rate-Regional Landscape Levy

3. To declare a separate rate based upon the capital value of rateable land of 0.008482 cents in the dollar in the area of the Hills and Fleurieu Region.

#### Declaration of a Separate Rate—Stirling Business

- 4. To declare a separate rate of 0.07930 cents in the dollar on the capital value of rateable land within the precinct known as the District Centre (Stirling) Zone and businesses fronting both sides of Mt Barker Road east of the District Centre (Stirling) Zone to Pine Street, but excluding land with the land use category 1 (Residential) and otherwise government owned land; and:
  - (a) To fix a minimum amount payable of \$297; and
  - (b) To fix a maximum amount payable of \$2,657.

#### Service Charges

- 5. To impose annual service charges of \$826 for occupied land and \$415 for vacant land based on the nature of the service and the level of usage of the service where the Council provides or makes available the following prescribed services:
  - (a) the Woodside Community Wastewater Management System;
  - (b) the Woodside Extension Community Wastewater Management System;
  - (c) the Birdwood and Mt Torrens Community Wastewater Management System;
  - (d) the Kersbrook Community Wastewater Management System;
  - (e) the Charleston Community Wastewater Management System;
  - (f) the Verdun Community Wastewater Management System; and
  - (g) the Mt Lofty Ward Community Wastewater Management System.

Dated: 14 July 2022

A. AITKEN Chief Executive Officer

# COPPER COAST COUNCIL

#### Adoption of Valuations and Declaration of Rates

NOTICE is hereby given that the Copper Coast Council, at its Meeting held on Wednesday, 6 July 2022, resolved for the year ending 30 June 2023 as follows:

# Adoption of Valuations

To adopt the most recent valuations of the Valuer-General available to the Council, of the capital value of land within the Council's area totalling \$4,499,213,160 and of which \$4,365,008,546 is the total valuation of rateable land.

#### Adoption of Rates

- 1. To declare the following differential general rates varying according to the use of the land:
- with a land use designated as Category (a) Residential, a rate of 0.2923 cents in the dollar;
  - with a land use designated as Category (b) Commercial—Shop, Category (c) Commercial—Office or Category (d) Commercial-Other, a rate of 0.6422 cents in the dollar; ii.
  - with a land use designated as Category (e) Industry-Light, Category (f) Industry-Other, a rate of 0.6663 cents in the dollar; with a land use designated as Category (g) Primary Production, a rate of 0.2526 cents in the dollar; iii.
  - iv.
  - with a land use designated as Category (h) Vacant Land, a rate of 0.4946 cents in the dollar; v.
- vi. with a land use designated as Category (i) - Other (any other land use not referred to in a previous category), a rate of 0.3294 cents in the dollar; and
  - vii. with a land use designated as Marina Berths, a rate of 0.6422 cents in the dollar.
- 2. To impose an amount of \$631 as a fixed charge as part of the general rates in respect of each separate piece of rateable land in the area of the Council.
- 3. To declare a separate rate of a fixed amount of \$721 in respect of each separate piece of rateable land in that part of the Council area known as "The Dunes" to partly fund the activity of the maintenance of the Port Hughes Golf Course.
- 4. To declare a differential separate rate of 0.0370 cents in the dollar with a minimum amount of \$50.00 being payable in respect of each separate piece of rateable land (excluding land with a residential land use) in that part of the Council area known as Kadina Central Business District for the activity which is the 'revitalisation project'.
- To declare a separate rate of a fixed amount of \$265 in respect to each allotment per certificate of title for properties in that part of the 5. Council area adjoining the Riley Cove Community Corporations 20692 internal roads to fund the activity of the replacement of the road seal, pavement and kerbing (internal road maintenance).
- To declare a separate rate of a fixed amount of \$164 in respect of each property allotment per certificate of title for properties adjoining Olive Parade, New Town for a 50% contribution towards the activity of installing kerbing for Olive Parade.
- 7. To declare a separate rate of a fixed amount of \$297.67 per lineal metre in respect of each property allotment per certificate of title for properties along the western boundary of Otago Road, North Beach and the property on Lot 11 located to the immediate south of the North Beach Tourist Park for a 34% contribution towards the activity of the implementation of the Sand drift Study.
- To declare a separate rate of a fixed amount of \$1,231.20 in respect of each property allotment per certificate of title for properties 8 adjoining David Street between George Street and Brittain Road for a 50% contribution to install kerbing and sealing on David Street.

Adoption of Community Wastewater Management Scheme Annual Service Charges

To impose an annual service charge based on the nature of the service and the level of usage of the service of \$544 per property unit in respect of all land to which the Council provides or makes available the Community Wastewater Management scheme.

#### Adoption of Regional Landscape Levy

To declare a separate rate of 0.0152 cents in the dollar based on the capital value of all rateable land within the Council area and the area of the Northern and Yorke Landscape Board in order to reimburse the Council the amount of \$658,019 payable to the Northern and Yorke Landscape Board.

Dated: 6 July 2022

RUSSELL PEATE Chief Executive Officer

#### LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

#### Adoption of Valuation and Declaration of Rates and Charges

Notice is hereby given that at its Meeting held on 28 June 2022, in relation to the financial year ending 30 June 2023, the Light Regional Council, in exercise of the powers contained within Chapter 10 of the Local Government Act 1999, made the following resolutions:

#### Adoption of Valuation

Council, pursuant to Section 167(2)(a) of the Local Government Act 1999, adopted for rating purposes (subject to alteration), the most recent valuations of the Valuer-General of South Australia available to the Council of the capital value of land within the area of the Council, with such valuations totalling \$4,345,886,520 of which \$4,281,600,938 is rateable.

#### Declaration of General Rate

Council, pursuant to Sections 153(1)(b) and 156(1)(a) of the Local Government Act 1999, declared the following differential general rates based on the capital value of rateable land varying according to the land use category:

- on all rateable land attributed Land Use Category 1-Residential, and Land Use Category 9-Other, a rate of 0.4342 cents in the (i) dollar of the capital value of the land;
- on all rateable land attributed Land Use Category 2-Commercial Shop, or Land Use Category 3-Commercial Office, or Land (ii) Use Category 8—Vacant Land, a rate of 0.7599 cents in the dollar of the capital value of the land;
- (iii) on all rateable land attributed Land Use Category 4-Commercial Other, a rate of 0.8684 cents in the dollar of the capital value of the land;
- on all rateable land attributed Land Use Category 5-Industrial Light, or Land Use Category 6-Industrial Other, a rate of 1.1941 (iv) cents in the dollar of the capital value of the land;
- (v) on all rateable land attributed Land Use Category 7-Primary Production, a rate of 0.3343 cents in the dollar of the capital value of the land.

#### Application of Rate Capping

That Council determined to grant a discretionary rebate of rates as it is considered appropriate to provide relief against what would otherwise amount to a substantial change in rates caused by rapid changes in property valuations. In accordance with Section 166(1)(1)(ii) of the Local Government Act 1999 a rebate will be available on application by the ratepayer within its rating policy for the financial year ending 30 June 2023 for all rateable land, and Council delegates to the person occupying the office of Chief Executive Officer of the

Council, or a staff member authorised by the person occupying office of the Chief Executive Officer, the power to accept and approve ratepayer applications in accordance with the following conditions:

- the rebate is available only for property valuation increases greater than 11% since the last general valuation.
- the rebate application process is to be received within 60 days of the first rates notice.
- the rebate is unavailable for 1) any property that has had improvements (valued at greater than \$40,000) since the last general valuation, 2) any property purchased since the last valuation, 3) any property where the land use has changed, and 4) any property where the minimum rate applies.
- no minimum rebate amount is set.

#### Declaration of Minimum Rate

Council, pursuant to Section 158(1)(a) of the Local Government Act 1999, fixed a minimum amount payable by way of the general rate of \$900.00 in respect of all rateable land within the council area.

#### eclaration of Community Wastewater Management System Annual Service Charge

Council, pursuant to Section 155 of the Local Government Act 1999, declared the following annual service charges based on the nature of the service on each assessment, whether vacant or occupied, to which the Council provides or makes available a Community Wastewater Management System service:

System	Annual Service Charge
Kapunda	\$580
Freeling	\$580
Freeling (Hanson Street Estates Sewer System)	\$580
Greenock	\$580
Nuriootpa	\$580
Roseworthy	\$580

Declaration of Domestic Refuse and Recycling Annual Service Charge

Council, pursuant to Section 155 of the Local Government Act 1999 declared an annual service charge based on the nature of the services for refuse collection and recycling of \$323.00 per assessment in respect of all land to which Council makes available the 3-bin service, and of \$218.00 per assessment in respect of all land to which Council provides or makes available the 2-bin service on the basis that the sliding scale provided for in Regulation 13 of the Local Government (General) Regulations 2013 will be applied to reduce the service charge payable, as prescribed.

#### Declaration of Separate Rate—Gawler Water Reuse Scheme

Council, pursuant to Section 154 of the Local Government Act 1999, declared a separate rate (based on a fixed charge against the land subject to the rate) of \$1,800,000 to be levied against the rateable assessment number 6512, Valuer-General of South Australian assessment number 3120415503, described as Allotment 100 of Filed Plan 35604, Certificate of Title Volume 5253 Folio 627.

#### Declaration of Separate Rate for Regional Landscape Levy

Council, pursuant to the powers contained in the Landscape South Australian Act 2019, and Section 154 of the Local Government Act 1999, and in order to reimburse the Council for the amount contributed to the Northern & Yorke Landscape Board, being \$349,177 declared a separate rate of 0.008361 cents in the dollar of the Capital Value of land, in respect of all rateable land in the Council's area and in the area of that Board, the Capital Value of such land totalling \$4,281,600,938.

Dated: 8 July 2022

B. CARR Chief Executive Officer

#### NORTHERN AREAS COUNCIL

Adoption of Annual Business Plan, Budget & Valuations and Declarations of Rates

NOTICE is hereby given that the Northern Areas Council at its meeting held on 29 June 2022:

# Adoption of Annual Business Plan and Budget 2022-2023

Pursuant to Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1999 and Regulations 6 and 7 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011, adopted the Annual Business Plan and Budget for 2022-2023.

#### Adoption of Capital Valuations

Pursuant to and in accordance with Section 167(2)(a) of the Local Government Act 1999 adopted for the year ending 30 June 2023 for rating purposes, the most recent valuations available to the Council made by the Valuer-General of capital values in relation to all land in the area of the Council, with the total of the valuations being \$2,099,636,040 comprising \$2,063,332,307 in respect of rateable land and \$36,303,733 in respect of non-rateable land.

# Declaration of Differential General Rates

Pursuant to and in accordance with Sections 152(1)(c), 153(1)(b) and 156(1)(b) of the Local Government Act 1999 and taking into account the general principles of rating in Section 150 of the *Local Government Act 1999* and the requirements of Section 153(2) of the *Local Government Act 1999* declared differential general rates on all rateable land within the Council area for the year ending 30 June 2023, comprising the following two components:

- (1) a component based upon the assessed capital value of land, varying according to land use as prescribed by Regulation 14(1) of the Local Government (General) Regulations 2013, as follows:
  - (a) 0.7227 cents in the dollar for all rateable land attributed with a land use of category (i) Other; and
  - (b) 0.6795 cents in the dollar for all rateable land attributed with a land use of category (a) Residential, (b) Commercial Shop, category (c) - Commercial - Office, category (d) - Commercial - Other, category (e) - Industry - Light or category (f) - Industry Other; and
  - (c) 0.2790 cents in the dollar for all rateable land attributed with a land use of category (g) Primary Production; and
    (d) 1.0300 cents in the dollar for all rateable land attributed with a land use of category (h) Vacant Land; and

(2) a fixed charge of \$150.00.

#### Declaration of Annual Waste Collection Service Charge

Pursuant to and in accordance with Section 155 of the *Local Government Act 1999* declared for the year ending 30 June 2023 an Annual Service Charge of \$250.00 per service upon all land within the townships of Jamestown, Spalding, Caltowie, Tarcowie, Stone Hut, Laura, Gladstone, Georgetown, Gulnare and Yacka to which it provides or makes available the prescribed service of waste collection subject (where relevant) to the application of Regulation 13 of the *Local Government (General) Regulations 2013*.

#### Declaration of Annual Community Wastewater Management Systems Service Charge

- (a) Pursuant to and in accordance with Section 155 of the *Local Government Act 1999* declared Annual Service Charges for the year ending 30 June 2023 upon the land to which it provides or makes available the prescribed service known as the Community Wastewater Management System, based on the Community Wastewater Management Systems Property Units Code described in Regulation 12 of the *Local Government (General) Regulations 2013*, as follows:
- (b) \$516.00 per unit in respect of each piece of occupied land and \$418.00 per unit in respect of each piece of vacant land serviced by the Jamestown Community Wastewater Management Systems
- (c) \$516.00 per unit in respect of each piece of occupied land and \$418.00 per unit in respect of each piece of vacant land serviced by the Laura Community Wastewater Management Systems
- (d) \$516.00 per unit in respect of each piece of occupied land and \$418.00 per unit in respect of each piece of vacant land serviced by the Moyletown area of Jamestown Community Wastewater Management Systems
- (e) \$516.00 per unit in respect of each piece of occupied land and \$418.00 per unit in respect of each piece of vacant land serviced by the Gladstone Community Wastewater Management Systems.

# Declaration of Separate Rate (Regional Landscape Levy)

Pursuant to Section 69 of the Landscape South Australia Act 2019 and Section 154 of the Local Government Act 1999 and in order to reimburse the Council for amounts contributed to the Northern and Yorke Landscape Board, being \$284,165.00, declared a separate rate of 0.01383 cents in the dollar for the year ending 30 June 2023, on all rateable properties in the area of the Council and of the Northern and Yorke Landscape Board based on the capital value of that land and calculated after taking into account rebates or remissions to be granted by the Council.

Dated: 29 June 2022

C. Byles Chief Executive Officer

#### RENMARK PARINGA COUNCIL

# Adoption of Valuations and Declaration of Rates 2022-2023

NOTICE is given that at its meeting held on 7 July 2022 the Renmark Paringa Council for the financial year ending 30 June 2023, passed the following resolutions:

- 1. Adopted the most recent valuations of the Valuer-General available to Council of the capital value of land within the Council's area, totalling \$1,979,371,160 for rating purposes.
- 2. Declared differential general rates as follows:
  - (a) 0.2362 cents in the dollar on rateable land of Category (a) (Residential) and Category (i) (Other);
  - (b) 0.5011 cents in the dollar on rateable land of Category (b) (Commercial—Shop), Category (c) (Commercial—Office), Category (d) (Commercial—Other), Category (e) (Industry—Light) and Category (f) (Industry—Other);
  - (c) 0.3524 cents in the dollar on rateable land of Category (g) (Primary Production); and
  - (d) 0.7789 cents in the dollar on rateable land of Category (h) (Vacant Land).
- 3. Imposed a fixed charge of \$400 on each separate piece of rateable land within the area of the Council.
- 4. Declared a separate rate of 0.01984 cents in the dollar, on all rateable land in the Council area in respect of Regional Landscape Levy.
- 5. Imposed an annual service charge of \$482 per unit on rateable and non-rateable land where a septic tank effluent disposal connection point is provided by Council.
- 6. Imposed an annual service charge of \$160 for residual waste collection within the Township areas (Town Residential).
- 7. Imposed an annual service charge of \$160 for residual waste collection within the Rural areas (Rural Residential).
- 8. Imposed an annual service charge of \$80 for recycling collection within the Township areas (Town Residential).
- 9. Imposed an annual service charge of \$80 for recycling collection within the Rural areas (Rural Residential).
- 10. Imposed an annual service charge of \$80 for organics collection within the Township areas (Town Residential).

Dated: 8 July 2022

T. SIVIOUR Chief Executive Officer

#### DISTRICT COUNCIL OF ROBE

#### Adoption of Valuation and Declaration of Rates 2022-2023

Notice is hereby given that the District Council of Robe, at a meeting held on 29 June 2022 for the financial year ending 30 June 2023, resolved as follows: -

- 1. Adopt for rating purposes, the most recent capital valuations of the Valuer-General totalling \$1,861,525,140.
- Declare a Differential General Rate of 0.234628 cents in the dollar on rateable land for Residential, Industry-Light, Industry-Other, Primary Production, Vacant land and Other and 0.281554 cents in the dollar for Commercial – Shop, Office & Other and Marina Berth assessed Capital Values of all rateable land in its area.
- 3. Declare a minimum amount payable by way of general rates in respect of any one piece of rateable land in the amount of \$752.00.

- 4. Declare a Separate Rate Underground Powerlines based on a fixed charge of \$2,325.50 on identified Properties.
- 5. Impose an annual service charge of \$331.00 for the Garbage and Recycling Collection Service based on the level of usage of the service, on all land to which Council provides or makes available the prescribed service, provided that the sliding scale provided for in regulations will apply to reduce the service charge, as prescribed.
- 6. Impose an annual service charge of \$178.00 for the Garbage Collection Service based on the level of usage of the service, on all land within the Boatswains Point area to which Council provides or makes available the prescribed service, provided that the sliding scale provided for in regulations will apply to reduce the service charge, as prescribed.
- Impose an annual service charge based on the nature and level of usage of the service and varying according to whether the land is vacant or occupied on all land to which Council provides or makes available the prescribed services for the collection, treatment or disposal of waste known as Community Waste Water Management System in respect of all land these schemes are provided or made available as follows: -Occupied \$572.00 per property unit, -Unoccupied \$461.00 per property unit.
- Declare a differential separate rate based on a fixed charge based upon the use of the land prescribed by regulation to reimburse the Council for its contribution to the Limestone Coast Regional Landscape Board as follows: Residential, Vacant & Other \$81.93; Commercial Shop, Office and Other \$122.21; Industry Light and Other \$195.53; Primary Production \$358.47. 8.

Dated: 12 July 2022

JAMES HOLYMAN Chief Executive Officer

#### TATIARA DISTRICT COUNCIL

# Adoption of Valuations and Declaration of Rates

NOTICE is hereby given that the Tatiara District Council at its Special Meeting held on 28 June 2022 resolved the following:

Adoption of Valuations

To adopt for rating purposes the most recent valuations of the Valuer-General available to the Council of the capital values of land within the Council area, totaling \$3,192,062,080, comprising \$3,152,180,500 in respect of rateable land and \$39,881,580 in respect of non-rateable land.

#### Declaration of Differential General Rates

To declare differential general rates on rateable land within the Council area according to the use of the land as follows:

- 0.4227 cents in the dollar in respect of all rateable land with land use categories (a) (Residential), (h) (Vacant Land) & (i) (Other). 0.395 cents in the dollar in respect of all rateable land with land use categories (b) (Commercial Shop), (c) (Commercial office) & (d) (Commercial Other) (e) (Industry Light) & (f) (Industry Other); and 0.2432 cents in the dollar in respect of all rateable land with land use category (g) (Primary Production).

#### Minimum Rate

To fix a minimum amount of \$580.00 shall be payable by way of general rates on rateable land within the Council area.

#### Regional Landscape Levy

To declare a separate rate based on a fixed charge on rateable land in the area of the Council and in the area of the Board of:

- \$83.80 in respect of rateable land with land use Categories (a), (h) & (i)
- 0 \$130.00 in respect of rateable land with land use Categories (b), (c) & (d)
- 0 \$180.00 in respect of rateable land with land use Categories (e) & (f)
  - \$368.00 in respect of rateable land with land use Categories (g)

#### Community Wastewater Management Schemes

To impose service charges on all land within its area to which Council provides or makes available the Community Wastewater Management System varying according to whether the land is vacant or occupied:

Bordertown CWMS	Vacant Land	\$160.00
	Occupied Land	\$350.00
Keith CWMS	Vacant Land	\$160.00
	Occupied Land	\$350.00
Mundulla CWMS	Vacant Land	\$160.00
	Occupied Land	\$350.00
Wolseley CWMS	Vacant Land	\$160.00
	Occupied Land	\$350.00

Waste Management and Recycling Collection Annual/Service Charge

To declare an annual service charge of \$379.00 based on the nature of the service in respect of all land to which it provides or makes available the service of a 3 bin Garbage, Green Waste and Recycling Collection Service.

Dated: 28 June 2022

A. CHAMPNESS Chief Executive Officer

# **PUBLIC NOTICES**

# TRUSTEE ACT 1936

PUBLIC TRUSTEE

Estates of Deceased Persons

In the matter of the estates of the undermentioned deceased persons:

BARRY Malcolm James late of 106-112 Florence Street Port Pirie Operator who died 11 December 2021

BELL Lindsay Colin late of 1 Holder Street Mt Gambier of no occupation who died 10 February 2022

CHECCUCCI-GRAHAM Anthony John late of 10 Malborough Street Fullarton of no occupation who died 18 February 2022

DOHERTY Carita Mary late of 2 Kalyra Road Belair of no occupation who died 22 March 2022

GRACE Grant Christopher late of 15 East Terrace Kensington Gardens of no occupation who died 20 January 2022 LAWRENCE Rachel otherwise EVANS Rachel late of 50 Gulfview Road Christies Beach of no occupation who died 26 November 2021

MCLOUGHLIN Michael James late of 17 Leeds Avenue Northfield of no occupation who died 7 January 2022

MINARCIC Marian late of 122 Esplanade Semaphore of no occupation who died 14 November 2021 SALOTTI Patricia Lorraine Dawn late of 14 Frew Street Fullarton Retired Kitchen Supervisor who died 6 April 2022

STARLING John Garth late of 695 Lower North East Road Paradise of no occupation who died 21 April 2022

SUTCLIFFE Evelyn Mary late of 336 Kensington Road Leabrook retired clerk officer who died 17 March 2022

THOMAS Brian Trevor late of 1 Myzanthia Street Lockleys retired radio technical officer who died 11 December 2021 WELLINGTON Lorraine Averil late of 37 McLaren Street Mount Barker of no occupation who died 18 February 2022

Notice is hereby given pursuant to the Trustee Act 1936, the Inheritance (Family Provision) Act 1972 and the Family Relationships Act 1975 that all creditors, beneficiaries, and other persons having claims against the said estates are required to send, in writing, to the office of Public Trustee at GPO Box 1338, Adelaide, 5001, full particulars and proof of such claims, on or before the 12 August 2022 otherwise they will be excluded from the distribution of the said estate; and notice is also hereby given that all persons indebted to the said estates are required to pay the amount of their debts to the Public Trustee or proceedings will be taken for the recovery thereof; and all persons having any property belonging to the said estates are forthwith to deliver same to the Public Trustee.

Dated: 14 July 2022

N. S. RANTANEN Public Trustee

#### UNIVERSITY OF ADELAIDE ACT 1971

Authority of Council for By-Law 4.11

#### 1. Background

The University is responsible for the management, preservation and protection of its campuses at North Terrace, Roseworthy and Waite. The campuses include the land and grounds on which the campuses are built.

Section 23 of The University of Adelaide Act (1971) (SA) (the Act) provides the power to Council to make by-laws for a range of purposes. These purposes include the power to regulate, restrict or prohibit the entrance to, and exit from, and the parking of, vehicles on University campuses; the speed at which vehicles may travel through the campuses; and generally to regulate traffic of all kinds within the University grounds.

Section 23 (1) (h) of the Act provides for the Council to make by-laws for the purposes of empowering a person authorised in writing by the Council to remove vehicles from the University grounds.

By-law 4.11 was duly made by the Council and published in the Government Gazette on 8 December 2011 and states that:

"An authorised person may remove from University grounds any vehicle which is in breach of any of these by-laws or a part of these by-laws".

Under By-law 1.1 an 'authorised person' for the purposes of By-law 4.11 means "a person or class of persons authorised in writing by the Council for the purposes of these by-laws or a part of these by-laws".

# 2. Authority

With the approval of Council the personnel and classes of personnel listed below are authorised as 'authorised officers' by the Council to take such actions as are permitted under By-law 4.11:

Chief Operating Officer Executive Director, Infrastructure Manager, Security Services Campus Estate Manager, Roseworthy & Waite Facilities Manager Roseworthy Site Supervisor Roseworthy Security Supervisor Security Officers Parking Officers

#### 3. Revocation

Any delegations in force immediately before the commencement of this Instrument of Delegation are hereby revoked.

#### 4. Commencement

This Authority comes into full force and effect on the date it is signed by the Chancellor.

Approved by Council. Dated: 27 June 2022 Signed by the Chancellor. Dated: 5 July 2022

ANDREW LEE Director, Governance Services Office of the Chancellor and Council Secretariat

#### UNIVERSITY OF ADELAIDE ACT 1971

Authority of Council for Offences against the By-Laws under the Explation of Offences Act 1996 and the Fines Enforcement and Debt Recovery Act 2017

#### 1. Background

The University is responsible for the management, preservation and protection of its campuses at North Terrace, Roseworthy and Waite. The campuses include the land and grounds on which the campuses are built.

Section 23 of *The University of Adelaide Act (1971) (SA) (the Act)* provides the power to Council to make by-laws for a range of purposes. These purposes include the power to regulate, restrict or prohibit the entrance to, and exit from, and the parking of, vehicles on University campuses; the speed at which vehicles may travel through the campuses; and generally to regulate traffic of all kinds within the University grounds.

Expedited enforcement of the University's by-laws may occur under the Expitation of Offences Act 1996 and the Fines Enforcement and Debt Recovery Act 2017.

# 2. Authority

With the approval of Council the personnel and classes of personnel listed below are authorised to exercise the powers and functions under sections 5(1), 6(3)(b)(ii), 8A(2), 8A(3), 11(1), 11A(1), 12, 16(1), 16(5), and 18 of the *Explation of Offences Act 1996*, and section 22(1) of the *Fines Enforcement and Debt Recovery Act 2017* for alleged offences against the University's by-laws:

Chief Operating Officer Executive Director, Infrastructure Manager, Security Services Campus Estate Manager, Roseworthy & Waite Facilities Manager Roseworthy Site Supervisor Roseworthy Security Supervisor Security Officers Parking Officers

#### 3. Revocation

Any delegations in force immediately before the commencement of this Instrument of Delegation are hereby revoked.

#### 4. Commencement

This Authority comes into full force and effect on the date it is signed by the Chancellor.

Approved by Council. Dated: 27 June 2022 Signed by the Chancellor. Dated: 5 July 2022

ANDREW LEE Director, Governance Services Office of the Chancellor and Council Secretariat

# **NOTICE SUBMISSION**

The South Australian Government Gazette is published each Thursday afternoon.

Notices must be emailed by 4 p.m. Tuesday, the week of publication.

Submissions are formatted per the gazette style and a proof will be supplied prior to publication, along with a quote if applicable. Please allow one day for processing notices.

Alterations to the proof must be returned by 4 p.m. Wednesday.

# Gazette notices must be submitted as Word files, in the following format:

- Title—the governing legislation
- Subtitle—a summary of the notice content
- Body-structured text, which can include numbered lists, tables, and images
- Date—day, month, and year of authorisation
- Signature block-name, role, and department/organisation authorising the notice

# Please provide the following information in your email:

- Date of intended publication
- Contact details of the person responsible for the notice content
- Name and organisation to be charged for the publication—Local Council and Public notices only
- Purchase order, if required—Local Council and Public notices only

EMAIL: governmentgazettesa@sa.gov.auPHONE: (08) 7109 7760WEBSITE: www.governmentgazette.sa.gov.au

All instruments appearing in this gazette are to be considered official, and obeyed as such

Printed and published weekly by authority of C. MCARDLE, Government Printer, South Australia \$8.15 per issue (plus postage), \$411.00 per annual subscription—GST inclusive Online publications: www.governmentgazette.sa.gov.au